
POLICE ACCOUNTABILITY BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA PACKET 

Wednesday, May 22, 2024 
6:30 P.M. 

Board Members 

John Moore III (Chair) Leah Wilson (Vice-Chair) 
Kitty Calavita Juliet Leftwich 

Brent Blackaby Joshua Cayetano 
Alexander Mozes 

MEETING LOCATION 

2020 Milvia Street, Suite 250
Berkeley, CA 94704

Item Description Page 

- Health and Safety Protocols for In-Person Meetings of Berkeley
Boards and Commissions

1 

2 May 22, 2024 Regular Meeting Agenda 4 

4.a. Minutes for the Regular Meeting of May 8, 2024 10 

8. List of Current PAB Subcommittees 16 

9.a. Section 125(4)(b) of the Berkeley City Charter 19 

9.b. Section 125(12) of the Berkeley City Charter and Memorandum from
the ODPA Titled “[RECOMMENDATION] Proposal to Systematize 
Board Training as Authorized by Section 125(12) of the Berkeley City 
Charter” 

21 

9.c. Memorandum from the ODPA Titled “[RECOMMENDATION]
Proposal to Delegate the Investigation or Research of AI-Assisted 
Police Reports to the ODPA” 

27 



9.d. Communication to the Berkeley City Council Transmitting the Police 
Accountability Board’s Report Titled “2024 Police Accountability 
Board Report: Implementation of Fair and Impartial Policing” 

32 

Off Agenda Reports 

1 Legislative Updates Relevant to the PAB’s Work 97 

Communications from the Public 

Communications to the PAB 102 



   

 

Health and Safety Protocols for In-Person Meetings of Berkeley Boards 

and Commissions 

  



Health and Safety Protocols for In-Person Meetings of 

Berkeley Boards and Commissions 

February 2023 

The policy below applies to in-person meetings of Berkeley Boards and Commissioners 

held in accordance with the Government Code (Brown Act) after the end of the State-

declared emergency on February 28, 2023.  

Issued By: City Manager’s Office 

Date: February 14, 2023 

I. Vaccination Status

All attendees are encouraged to be fully up to date on their vaccinations,

including any boosters for which they are eligible.

II. Health Status Precautions

For members of the public who are feeling sick, including but not limited to

cough, shortness of breath or difficulty breathing, fever or chills, muscle or body

aches, vomiting or diarrhea, or new loss of taste or smell, it is recommended that

they do not attend the meeting in-person as a public health precaution. In these

cases, the public may submit comments in writing in lieu of attending in-person.

If an in-person attendee has been in close contact, as defined below, with a
person who has tested positive for COVID-19 in the past five days, they are
advised to wear a well-fitting mask (N95s, KN95s, KF94s are best), test for
COVID-19 3-5 days from last exposure, and consider submitting comments in
writing in lieu of attending in-person.

Close contact is defined as someone sharing the same indoor airspace, e.g.,
home, clinic waiting room, airplane, etc., for a cumulative total of 15 minutes or
more over a 24-hour period within 2 days before symptoms of the infected
person appear (or before a positive test for asymptomatic individuals); or having
contact with COVID-19 droplets (e.g., being coughed on while not wearing
recommended personal protective equipment).

A voluntary sign-in sheet will be available at the meeting entry for in-person
attendees. This will assist with contact tracing in case of COVID-19 contact
resulting from the meeting.

Members of City Commissions are encouraged to take a rapid COVID-19 test on
the day of the meeting.



Health and Safety Protocols for In-Person Meetings of 

Berkeley Boards and Commissions 

February 2023 
 

 

III. Face Coverings/Mask 

Face coverings or masks that cover both the nose and mouth are encouraged for 

all commissioners, staff, and attendees at an in-person City Commission 

meeting. Face coverings will be provided by the City and available for attendees 

to use at the meeting. Members of Commissions, city staff, and the public are 

encouraged to wear a mask at all times, except when speaking publicly from the 

dais or at the public comment podium, although masking is encouraged even 

when speaking. 

 

IV. Physical Distancing 

Currently, there are no physical distancing requirements in place by the State of 

California or the Local Health Officer for an indoor event similar to a Commission 

meeting.   

 

Audience seating capacity will be at regular allowable levels per the Fire Code. 

Capacity limits will be posted at the meeting location. However, all attendees are 

requested to be respectful of the personal space of other attendees. An area of 

the public seating area will be designated as “distanced seating” to 

accommodate persons that need to distance for personal health reasons. 

 

Distancing will be implemented for the dais as space allows. 

 

V. Protocols for Teleconference Participation by Commissioners 

Upon the repeal of the state-declared emergency, all standard Brown Act 

requirements will be in effect for Commissioners participating remotely due to an 

approved ADA accommodation. For Commissioners participating remotely, the 

agenda must be posted at the remote location, the remote location must be 

accessible to the public, and the public must be able to participate and give 

public comment from the remote location. 

• A Commissioner at a remote location will follow the same health and safety 

protocols as in-person meetings.   

• A Commissioner at a remote location may impose reasonable capacity 

limits at their location. 

 

VI. Hand Washing/Sanitizing 

Hand sanitizing stations are available at the meeting locations. The bathrooms 

have soap and water for handwashing. 

 

VII. Air Flow/Circulation/Sanitizing 

Air filtration devices are used at all meeting locations. Window ventilation may be 

used if weather conditions allow.



   

 

Item 2: May 22, 2024 Regular Meeting Agenda 

  



Public 

1 
 

PAB May 22, 2024 Regular Meeting 

 

POLICE ACCOUNTABILITY BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, May 22, 2024 

6:30 P.M. 

 

Board Members 

John Moore III (Chair) Leah Wilson (Vice-Chair) 

Kitty Calavita Juliet Leftwich 

Brent Blackaby Joshua Cayetano 

Alexander Mozes  
 

MEETING LOCATION 

2020 Milvia Street, Suite 250 
Berkeley, CA 94704 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE  

To access the meeting remotely:  join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device 

using this URL: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82653396072. If you do not wish for your 

name to appear on the screen, use the drop-down menu and click on “rename” to rename 

yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the screen. 

To join by phone: Dial 1 669 900 6833 and enter Meeting ID 826 5339 6072. If you wish 

to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press *9 and wait to be 

recognized. 

  



Public 

2 
 

PAB May 22, 2024 Regular Meeting 

LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT  

The City of Berkeley recognizes that the community we live in was built on the territory of 

xučyun (Huchiun (Hooch-yoon)), the ancestral and unceded land of the Chochenyo 

(Chochen-yo)-speaking Ohlone (Oh-low-nee) people, the ancestors and descendants of 

the sovereign Verona Band of Alameda County. This land was and continues to be of 

great importance to all of the Ohlone Tribes and descendants of the Verona Band. As we 

begin our meeting tonight, we acknowledge and honor the original inhabitants of 

Berkeley, the documented 5,000-year history of a vibrant community at the West Berkeley 

Shellmound, and the Ohlone people who continue to reside in the East Bay. We recognize 

that Berkeley’s residents have and continue to benefit from the use and occupation of this 

unceded stolen land since the City of Berkeley’s incorporation in 1878. As stewards of 

the laws regulating the City of Berkeley, it is not only vital that we recognize the history of 

this land, but also recognize that the Ohlone people are present members of Berkeley 

and other East Bay communities today.  

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL (2 MINUTES) 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (2 MINUTES) 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (TBD) 

Speakers are generally allotted up to three minutes, but may be allotted less time if there 

are many speakers; they may comment on any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction at 

this time, except confidential personnel matters.  

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (5 MINUTES) 

a. Minutes for the Regular Meeting of May 8, 2024 

5. ODPA STAFF REPORT (10 MINUTES) 

Announcements, updates, and other items. 

6. CHAIR AND BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS (10 MINUTES) 

Announcements, updates, and other items. 

  



Public 

3 
 

PAB May 22, 2024 Regular Meeting 

7. CHIEF OF POLICE’S REPORT (10 MINUTES) 

Crime/cases of interest, community engagement/department events, staffing, training, 

and other items of interest. 

8. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS (10 MINUTES) 

Report of activities and meeting schedule for all subcommittees, possible appointment or 

reassignment of members to subcommittees, and additional discussion and action as 

warranted for the subcommittees listed on the PAB’s Subcommittee List included in the 

agenda packet.  

9. NEW BUSINESS (1 HOUR) 

a. Discussion and action on the Board’s authority under Section 125(4)(b) of the 

Berkeley City Charter to propose an operational budget to the City Council. 

(Wilson) – (15 Minutes) 

b. Discussion and action on a proposal to systematize Board training as 

authorized by Section 125(12) of the Berkeley City Charter. (ODPA) – (15 

Minutes) 

c. Discussion and recommendation on ODPA’s proposal to the PAB for 

delegating the investigation or research of AI-assisted police reports to the 

ODPA. (ODPA) – (15 MINUTES) 

d. Discussion and action on presenting the PAB’s report, “2024 Police 

Accountability Board Report: Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation,” to the 

City Council. (Calavita) – (15 MINUTES) 

10. PUBLIC COMMENT (TBD) 

Speakers are generally allotted up to three minutes, but may be allotted less time if there 

are many speakers; they may comment on any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction at 

this time, except confidential personnel matters. 

 

---Continued on the following page---  



Public 

4 
 

PAB May 22, 2024 Regular Meeting 

11. CLOSED SESSION  

CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 

Pursuant to the Court’s order in Berkeley Police Association v. City of Berkeley, et al., 

Alameda County Superior Court Case No. 2002-057569, the Board will recess into 

closed session to discuss and act on the following matter(s): 

a. Case Updates and Recommendations Regarding Complaints Received by the 
ODPA: 
 
i. 2023-CI-0009 
ii. 2023-CI-0012 
iii. 2023-CI-0014 
iv. 2023-CI-0016 
v. 2023-CI-0017 
vi. 2023-CI-0019 
vii. 2024-CI-0001 

viii. 2024-CI-0003 
ix. 2024-CI-0004 
x. 2024-CI-0005 
xi. 2024-CI-0006 
xii. 2024-CI-0009 
xiii. 2024-CI-0011 
xiv. 2024-CI-0012 

 
 

 

END OF CLOSED SESSION 

 

12. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS (1 MINUTE) 

13. ADJOURNMENT (1 MINUTE) 

 

Off Agenda Reports 

1. Legislative Updates Relevant to the PAB’s Work 

 

  



Public 

5 
 

PAB May 22, 2024 Regular Meeting 

Communications Disclaimer 

Communications to the Police Accountability Board, like all communications to Berkeley 
boards, commissions, or committees, are public records and will become part of the 
City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: 
e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, but 
if included in any communication to a City board, commission, or committee, will become 
part of the public record.  If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact 
information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
or in person to the Board Secretary. If you do not want your contact information included 
in the public record, do not include that information in your communication. Please 
contact the Board Secretary for further information.   

Communication Access Information (A.R. 1.12)  

To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including 
auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6418 
(V) or 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date.   

  

SB 343 Disclaimer  

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Board regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at the Office of the Director of Police 
Accountability, located at 1947 Center Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA.   

 

Contact the Director of Police Accountability (Board Secretary) at: 

1947 Center Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704 

TEL: 510-981-4950 TDD: 510-981-6903 FAX: 510-981-4955 

Website: https://berkeleyca.gov/safety-health/police-accountability 

Email: dpa@berkeleyca.gov 

 

NOTICE OF TEMPORARY LOCATION 
 

Please note that the ODPA is currently operating from a temporary location at 2020 
Milvia Street, Suite 250, Berkeley, CA. For in-person visits, appointments are strongly 
encouraged and can be made by calling our main line.  Mail can still be received at 
1947 Center Street. 
 

 

mailto:dpa@berkeleyca.gov
mailto:dpa@berkeleyca.gov


   

 

Item 4.a.: Minutes for the Regular Meeting of May 8, 2024 

  



Public 
1 

 

PAB May 8, 2024 Regular Meeting 

 

POLICE ACCOUNTABILITY BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

WEDNESDAY, May 8, 2024 
6:30 P.M. 

 
Board Members 

John Moore III (Chair) Leah Wilson (Vice-Chair) 
Kitty Calavita Juliet Leftwich 

Brent Blackaby Joshua Cayetano 
Alexander Mozes  

 

MEETING LOCATION 

North Berkeley Senior Center 
1901 Hearst Avenue 
Berkeley, CA 94709 

(Click here for Directions) 
 
Meeting Recording: 

Minutes 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL AT 6:33 PM. 

Present:  Board Member John Moore (Chair). 
Board Member Leah Wilson (Vice-Chair)1 
Board Member Calavita. 

   Board Member Juliet Leftwich 
   Board Member Brent Blackaby 

Board Member Joshua Cayetano 
Board Member Alexander Mozes 

Absent:  None. 
ODPA Staff:  Hansel Aguilar, Director of Police Accountability 
   Jose Murillo, Program Analyst 
   Keegan Horton, Investigator 
BPD Staff:  Deputy Chief Tate 
                                                            
1 Vice-Chair Wilson participated remotely on a just cause provision.  

https://www.google.com/maps/dir/north+berkeley+senior+center/data=!4m6!4m5!1m1!4e2!1m2!1m1!1s0x80857e9897690f3b:0x32927cbae7ff54df?sa=X&ved=2ahUKEwizgcGHioqBAxWCJUQIHdWwBJkQ9Rd6BAhNEAA&ved=2ahUKEwizgcGHioqBAxWCJUQIHdWwBJkQ9Rd6BAhYEAQ
https://www.google.com/maps/dir/north+berkeley+senior+center/data=!4m6!4m5!1m1!4e2!1m2!1m1!1s0x80857e9897690f3b:0x32927cbae7ff54df?sa=X&ved=2ahUKEwizgcGHioqBAxWCJUQIHdWwBJkQ9Rd6BAhNEAA&ved=2ahUKEwizgcGHioqBAxWCJUQIHdWwBJkQ9Rd6BAhYEAQ


Public 
2 

 

PAB May 8, 2024 Regular Meeting 

BPD Staff:  Lt. Montgomery 
CAO Staff:   None. 
CMO Staff:   Dr. Carianna Arredondo, Assistant to the City Manager 

Rex Brown, DEI Officer 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion to approve the agenda. 
Moved/Second (Leftwich/Calavita) Motion carried. 
Ayes: Blackaby, Calavita, Cayetano, Leftwich, Moore, Mozes, and Wilson. 
Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 

2 Physical Present Speaker(s) 

1 Virtually Present Speaker(s) 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
a. Minutes for the Regular Meeting of April 17, 2024 

Motion to approve the Regular Meeting of April 17, 2024. 
Moved/Second (Mozes/Leftwich) Motion carried. 
Ayes: Blackaby, Calavita, Cayetano, Leftwich, Moore, Mozes, and Wilson. 
Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. 
 

b. Minutes for the Special Meeting of April 24, 2024 

Motion to approve the Special Meeting of April 24, 2024. 

Moved/Second (Mozes/Leftwich) Motion carried. 
Ayes: Blackaby, Calavita, Cayetano, Leftwich, Moore, Mozes, and Wilson. 
Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. 
 

5. ODPA STAFF REPORT 

A training is provided to the PAB related to Section 125(18)(a)(2) of the Berkeley City 

Charter regarding Voluntary mediation of complaints by Sabrie & Associates2: 

                                                            
2 Mediation | Sabrie and Associates | United States: https://www.sabrieandassociates.com/ 

https://www.sabrieandassociates.com/
https://www.sabrieandassociates.com/


Public 
3 

 

PAB May 8, 2024 Regular Meeting 

ODPA staff provide the Board with announcements, updates, and other items. Dr. 

Arredondo announces that the City Managers Office will be providing an update on 

Reimagining Public Safety3. 

6. CHAIR AND BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 

Chair Moore and Board Member Calavita asks that Board Members schedule time to visit 

the ODPA to review materials related to the Downtown Task Force Text allegations.  

7. CHIEF OF POLICE’S REPORT (10 MINUTES) 

Deputy Chief Tate provides updates on staffing, training, and cases of interest.  

8. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS (10 MINUTES) 

Subcommittees report on their activities. 

9. NEW BUSINESS (40 MINUTES) 
a. Discussion and Action on the Budget & Metrics Subcommittee’s proposed BPD 

budget recommendations memo for City Council. 

Motion to adopt the Budget & Metrics Subcommittee’s proposed BPD budget 
recommendations memo for City Council with bullet points 1 – 4 in part 6 and add 
to recommendations 2 a note stating that 99% of BPD’s baseline budget for FY2025 
is not reviewed in detail through the budget process.  
Moved/Second (Mozes/Leftwich) Motion carried. 
Ayes: Blackaby, Calavita, Cayetano, Leftwich, Moore, and Mozes. 
Noes: Wilson. Abstain: None. Absent: None. 
 

Motion to delegate to the subcommittee the task of implementing the PAB’s 
comments and feedback to submit the memorandum to Council. 
Moved/Second (Wilson/Blackaby) Motion carried. 
Ayes: Blackaby, Calavita, Cayetano, Leftwich, Moore, Mozes, and Wilson. 
Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. 

b. Discussion and Action on BPD Equipment Reporting (ODPA) – (15 MINUTES) 

i. Correction regarding the 2023 Police Equipment and Community Safety 

Ordinance Annual Report  

                                                            
3 The update on the Reimagining Public Safety initiative can be found as Item 27 on the City Council’s Action 
Calendar for May 14, 2024: berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-14 Revised Agenda 
Packet - Council - WEB.pdf 

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-14%20Revised%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council%20-%20WEB.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-14%20Revised%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council%20-%20WEB.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-14%20Revised%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council%20-%20WEB.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-14%20Revised%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council%20-%20WEB.pdf


Public 
4 

 

PAB May 8, 2024 Regular Meeting 

No Action taken. 

ii. AB 481 Military Equipment Annual Report 

No Action taken.  

c. Discussion and Action regarding the potential changing of the regular meeting 

location4 (ODPA) – (10 MINUTES) 

Motion to approve staff’s request to change the PAB’s regular meeting location 
from the North Berkeley Senior Center to 2020 Milvia Street, pending clarification 
on how accessibility to the public will be ensured. 
Moved/Second (Mozes/Leftwich) Motion carried. 
Ayes: Blackaby, Calavita, Moore, Mozes, and Wilson. 
Noes: Leftwich. Abstain: Cayetano. Absent: None. 
 
10. PUBLIC COMMENT 

1 Physical Present Speaker(s) 

0 Virtually Present Speaker(s) 

11. CLOSED SESSION  

CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 

Pursuant to the Court’s order in Berkeley Police Association v. City of Berkeley, et al., 

Alameda County Superior Court Case No. 2002-057569, the Board will recess into 

closed session to discuss and act on the following matter(s): 

a. The ODPA provided case updates and the PAB made the following motions: 

Motion to administratively close ODPA Complaint Number 2024-CI-0008. 
Moved/Second (Wilson/Blackaby) Motion carried. 
Ayes: Blackaby, Calavita, Cayetano, Leftwich, Moore, Mozes, and Wilson. 
Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: None. 

 

END OF CLOSED SESSION 

 

                                                            
4 Commissions may change the meeting schedule and location by formal action. Source: Berkeley Commissioner’s 
Manual Chapter IV.B.1. 

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-03/Commissioners-Manual.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-03/Commissioners-Manual.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-03/Commissioners-Manual.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-03/Commissioners-Manual.pdf


Public 
5 

 

PAB May 8, 2024 Regular Meeting 

12. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS 
Chair Moore announces the closed session actions. 

13. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn. Moved/Second (Calavita/Leftwich) The meeting was adjourned at 

9:16 PM by unanimous consent. 

Minutes Approved on:  ___________________________ 
Hansel Aguilar, Commission Secretary: ___________________________ 
 



   

 

Item 8: List of Current PAB Subcommittees 

  



   

 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
SUBCOMMITTEES LIST 

As of 04/12/2024 

 
Subcommittee 

 

 
Board Members 

 

 
Chair 

 

 
BPD Reps 

Regulations 
Formed 7-7-21 

Renewed 6-7-2023 

Calavita 
Leftwich 

 
Public members: 

Kitt Saginor 

N/A Lt. Dan Montgomery 
 

Fair & Impartial Policing 
Implementation 
Formed 8-4-21 

Renewed 6-7-2023 

Calavita 
Wilson 

 
Public members: 
George Lippman 

Calavita Sgt. Peter Lee 

Surveillance Technology 
Policy 

Formed 6-7-2023 

Calavita 
Moore 

N/A N/A 

Policy and Practices 
relating to the Downtown 
Task Force and Bike Unit 

Allegations 
Formed 11-15-22 

Calavita 
Moore 

 

Calavita N/A 

Body-Worn Camera Policy 
Formed 03-15-23 

Leftwich 
Cayetano 

Leftwich N/A 

Conflict of Interest 
Formed 03-29-23 

Leftwich 
Wilson 

Leftwich N/A 

Policy Reviews  
Formed 11-08-2023 

Scope Expanded 03-02-
2024 

Formally “Lexipol Review” 

Leftwich 
Cayetano 

Mozes 
 

Public members: 
Kitt Saginor 

Leftwich N/A 



   

 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Budget & Metrics 
Formed 11-08-2023 

Scope Expanded 03-02-
2024 

Wilson 
Blackaby 

N/A N/A 

Outreach & Engagement 
Formed 11-08-2023 

Scope Expanded 03-02-
2024 

Formally “Commendations” 

Moore 
Blackaby 

 

N/A N/A 

Off-Duty Conduct  Cayetano 
Leftwich 

N/A Lt. Rittenhouse  

Operations & Processes  
Formed 03-02-2024 

Wilson 
Mozes 

TBD TBD 



   

 

Item 9.a.: Section 125(4)(b) of the Berkeley City Charter 

  





   

 

Item 9.b.: Section 125(12) of the Berkeley City Charter and Memorandum 

from the ODPA Titled “[RECOMMENDATION] Proposal to Systematize 

Board Training as Authorized by Section 125(12) of the Berkeley City 

Charter” 

  







   

 

1 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: Friday, May 17, 2024 

To: Honorable Members of the Police Accountability Board (PAB) 

From: Hansel Aguilar, Director of Police Accountability (DPA) 
Jose Murillo, Policy Analyst  
 

Subject: [RECOMMENDATION] Proposal to Systematize Board Training as 
Authorized by Section 125(12) of the Berkeley City Charter 

 

In line with Section 125(12) of the Berkeley City Charter, the purpose of this memorandum 

is to propose a path for the PAB to systematize the training of its members.  

Background 

In February 2023, the DPA presented a proposed curriculum1 modeled after the National 

Association for Civilian Oversight of Law Enforcement’s (NACOLE) recommendations 

and tailored them to Berkeley's specific needs. The curriculum included the following 

components: 

• Introduction to Boards & Commissions: Covered the purpose, mission, scope, 

legal considerations, and technological resources. 

• Introduction to Civilian Oversight: Historical context and local oversight 

mechanisms. 

                                                           
1Proposed curriculum can be accessed at: 
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-attachments/2023-02-
08%20PAB%20Regular%20Mtg.Pkt_.pdf  

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-attachments/2023-02-08%20PAB%20Regular%20Mtg.Pkt_.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-attachments/2023-02-08%20PAB%20Regular%20Mtg.Pkt_.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-attachments/2023-02-08%20PAB%20Regular%20Mtg.Pkt_.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-attachments/2023-02-08%20PAB%20Regular%20Mtg.Pkt_.pdf


   

 

2 
 

• Principles of Effective Oversight: Independence, jurisdiction and authority, 

unfettered access to records and facilities, access to law enforcement executives, 

and more. 

• Specific Training Modules: Detailed modules on the topics referenced in Charter:  

1. Quasi-judicial duties and obligations of the Board; 

2. Constitutional rights and civil liberties; 

3. Fundamentals of procedure, evidence and due process; 

4. The Public Safety Officers Procedural Bill of Rights Act; 

5. Police Department operations, policies, practices, and procedures; and 

6. Duties, responsibilities, procedures and requirements associated with all 

ranks and assignments. 

Over the past year, individual PAB members have consistently highlighted the importance 

of ensuring that the entire PAB is up to date with training requirements. During the 

presentation of the annual report, the status of board member training was inquired about 

by Council members, underscoring the ongoing need for a structured and comprehensive 

training program for all board members. This memo aims to present a pathway to ensure 

that all PAB members are adequately prepared to perform their duties effectively, 

contributing to transparent and accountable oversight of the Berkeley Police Department.  

Importance of Systematic Training 

• Systematic training ensures consistency, enhances members' understanding of 

their roles, and fosters a well-informed board capable of making sound decisions. 

• Training modules will be designed to cover a broad range of topics, including legal 

considerations, community engagement, and procedural justice, tailored to the 

unique needs of the Berkeley Police Accountability Board. 

Action Plan 

• Implement the adherence to the Proposed Training Curriculum (Presented Feb. 

2023) through an adoption of asynchronous and synchronous methods that can 

be in-person, virtually, or in a hybrid format to accommodate different schedules 

and preferences. 

o Suggested pace:  

▪ Asynchronous (individually) 



   

 

3 
 

▪ 2 hours of training assigned by DPA per month 

▪ Total yearly training hours: 24 

▪ Synchronous (collectively) 

▪ 1.5 hours of training during PAB meetings for 11 months.  

▪ Total yearly training hours: 16.5 

• Organize training schedule so that asynchronous components align with initial 

training sessions for new members and synchronous trainings align with ongoing 

training for all members. 

• Co-develop with PAB a review mechanism to assess the effectiveness of the 

training program and make necessary adjustments. 

Conclusion 

Systematizing board training is a critical step in enhancing the effectiveness of the 

Berkeley Police Accountability Board. By adopting this proposal, we can ensure that all 

members are equipped with the knowledge and skills necessary to fulfill their oversight 

responsibilities diligently. 

Recommendation 

• Approve the proposal to systematize board training. 

• Implement the training curriculum as outlined in the attached document. 

Alternative Recommendations 

• Refer matter to specific PAB member or subcommittee to explore further how to 

systematize Board training.  

 



   

 

Item 9.c.: Memorandum from the ODPA Titled “[RECOMMENDATION] 

Proposal to Delegate the Investigation or Research of AI-Assisted Police 

Reports to the ODPA” 

  



   

 

1 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: Friday, May 17, 2024 

To: Honorable Members of the Police Accountability Board (PAB) 

From: Hansel Aguilar, Director of Police Accountability (DPA) 
Jose Murillo, Policy Analyst  
 

Subject: [RECOMMENDATION] Proposal to Delegate the Investigation or 
Research of AI-Assisted Police Reports to the ODPA 

 

In line with Section 125(17)(a) of the Berkeley City Charter which allows PAB members 

to “review policies, practices, and procedures of the Police Department in its discretion” 

and the Standing Rules Section G.3.a, which allows the PAB to ask “staff to investigate 

or research the issue," the purpose of this memorandum is to propose that the Police 

Accountability Board (PAB) delegate the investigation or research of AI-assisted police 

reports to the ODPA. 

Background 

AI-assisted tools for police reporting, such as Axon's recently deployed "Draft One1," 

present both opportunities and challenges. These tools can potentially streamline report 

writing, improve accuracy, and save time for officers. However, they also raise important 

considerations regarding cost, legal implications, data privacy, and the potential impact 

on civil liberties. 

The ODPA is particularly interested in this initiative due to the current staffing shortages 

of the Berkeley Police Department (BPD) and the noticeable number of allegations 

                                                           
1 For more on AXON’s tool: https://www.axon.com/products/draft-one  

https://www.axon.com/products/draft-one
https://www.axon.com/products/draft-one


   

 

2 
 

concerning inaccurate reports. In 2023 and so far in 2024, eleven out of thirty cases 

(36.67% of cases) have included at least one allegation of improper or inaccurate 

reporting by patrol officers. Additionally, three more cases raised concerns about potential 

false or improper reports in their narratives, though they did not present formal 

allegations. Improving the efficiency and accuracy of BPD patrol officers' report writing is 

crucial to addressing these concerns and enhancing overall accountability. 

Proposal Details 

1. Delegation of Investigation/Research: 

o The ODPA will take the lead in investigating and researching AI-assisted 

police reporting tools. 

o Our focus will be on understanding how these tools can be integrated into 

existing practices while maintaining accountability and transparency. 

2. Scope of Policy Research: 

o Cost Analysis: Assessing the financial implications of adopting AI-assisted 

reporting tools, including initial setup costs, ongoing maintenance, and 

potential savings. 

o Legal Concerns: Reviewing the legal framework surrounding the use of AI 

in police reporting, ensuring compliance with local, state, and federal 

regulations. 

o Data Privacy: Evaluating the impact on data privacy, particularly 

concerning the handling and storage of sensitive information. 

o Operational Impact: Studying the potential effects on police operations, 

including efficiency gains and changes in report quality and accuracy. 

o Ethical Considerations: Considering the ethical implications, especially 

regarding potential biases in AI algorithms and the impact on community 

trust. 

o Equity Impact: Analyzing how the adoption of AI-assisted tools will affect 

equity both within the police department and in the community, ensuring 



   

 

3 
 

that these tools do not exacerbate existing disparities or create new 

inequities. 

3. Policy Review: 

o The ODPA will conduct a comprehensive policy review, examining best 

practices and guidelines for implementing AI-assisted reporting tools. 

o This review will include consultations with stakeholders, including legal 

experts, community representatives, and technology providers. 

4. Example: 

o As a point of reference, Axon's "Draft One" serves as an example of an AI-

assisted tool currently available in the market. Our review will include an 

evaluation of this and similar tools without committing to any specific vendor 

at this stage. 

Action Plan 

• Initial Research Phase: Conduct preliminary research to gather information on 

available AI-assisted tools and their implementation in other jurisdictions. 

• Stakeholder Engagement: Engage with key stakeholders to gather insights and 

address concerns related to AI-assisted police reports. 

• Policy Formulation: Develop a draft policy outlining guidelines for the use of AI 

in police reporting, including safeguards to ensure accountability and 

transparency. 

• Board Review and Approval: Present the findings and draft policy to the PAB for 

review and approval. 

Conclusion 

Delegating the investigation or research of AI-assisted police reports to the ODPA aligns 

with our commitment to enhancing police accountability through innovative solutions. By 

conducting a thorough review and considering all relevant factors, we can ensure that 

any adoption of AI tools is done responsibly and effectively. 



   

 

4 
 

Recommendation for the PAB: 

• Approve the proposal to delegate the investigation or research of AI-assisted 

police reports to the ODPA. 

• Authorize the ODPA to proceed with the outlined action plan and report back to 

the PAB with findings and recommendations. 

Alternative Recommendations 

• Refer matter to specific Board member or subcommittee to explore further how to 

systematize Board training.  

• Reject the proposal 



   

 

Item 9.d.: Communication to the Berkeley City Council Transmitting the 

Police Accountability Board’s Report Titled “2024 Police Accountability 

Board Report: Implementation of Fair and Impartial Policing” 

  



1

Murillo, Jose

From: Murillo, Jose
Sent: Thursday, May 16, 2024 4:59 PM
To: 'council@berkeleyca.gov'
Cc: Louis, Jennifer A.; Tate, Jen; Williams-Ridley, Dee; Cardwell, Anne; Bellow, LaTanya; Brown, Farimah F.; 

Arredondo, Carianna; Hansel Aguilar (HAguilar@cityofberkeley.info)
Subject: 2024 Police Accountability Board Report: Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation
Attachments: 2024 PAB Report_FIP Implementation_Final.pdf

Good afternoon Mayor Arreguín and Members of the City Council,  
 
On February 23, 2021, the Berkeley City Council unanimously passed the package of policy recommendations 
that the Mayor’s Working Group on Fair and Impartial Policing (FIP) forwarded to City Council after two years of 
meetings with experts and Berkeley Police Department representatives. As part of that package, the Police 
Review Commission (PRC) and its successor the Police Accountability Board (PAB) were assigned responsibility 
for “monitoring and assessing” BPD implementation of the FIP directives. 
 
As part of that directive, on April 24, 2024, the PAB voted to approve the recommendations presented in this 
attached report with a vote count of: 6 Ayes and 1 Nay. On behalf of the Police Accountability Board, please see 
the attached report titled “2024 Police Accountability Board Report: Fair and Impartial Policing 
Implementation.” 
 
Best regards,  
 
Jose D. Murillo, MBA 
Policy Analyst 
Office of the Director of Police Accountability 
1947 Center St. – 5th floor* 
Berkeley, CA  94704 
(510) 981‐4966 
jmurillo@berkeleyca.gov 
 
*The ODPA is currently located at 2020 Milvia Street, Suite 250, Berkeley, CA 94704.  
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message, including any attachments, is intended solely for the use of the 
intended recipient(s) and may contain confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient or an 
authorized agent thereof, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, disclosure, or copying of this message, 
or any attachment, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please immediately notify the 
sender by reply email and delete the message from your files. 



2024 

Approved* by the Police Accountability Board on 

April 24, 2024

*(6 Aye Votes and 1 Nay Vote)

Meeting Link: 

https://tinyurl.com/PAB-FIP-Report-Approval 

Police Accountability Board Report: 

Fair and Impartial Policing 

Implementation 



1 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

Table of Contents 

Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Fair and Impartial Policing Statistical Profile ................................................................................................................... 6 

Policy and Practices Directive and Reforms ................................................................................................................ 10 

Reducing stops for low-level infractions and focusing on safety in traffic stops. ................................ 10 

Clear, evidence-based definition of stops of criminal suspects. ................................................................. 14 

Only use race and ethnicity as determining factors together with other clear criteria. ................. 15 

Enhanced Implicit Bias Training ..................................................................................................................................... 15 

Early Intervention System (EIS) ........................................................................................................................................ 16 

Written consent search forms ......................................................................................................................................... 17 

Warrantless searches of people on supervised release status ...................................................................... 18 

Profiling by proxy ................................................................................................................................................................... 19 

Resources on police-civilian encounters. ................................................................................................................. 20 

Fire racist officers identified through social media and other media screens ...................................... 20 

Require regular analysis of BPD stop, search, and use of force data ....................................................... 20 

Make resources on police-civilian encounters publicly available such as through RAHEEM.org

 ........................................................................................................................................................................................................ 21 

Conclusions and Recommendations .............................................................................................................................. 21 

Recommendations to the Berkeley Police Department .................................................................................. 21 

Recommendations to the Police Accountability Board .................................................................................. 23 

Recommendations to the Berkeley City Council ................................................................................................. 24 

Appendix ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 25 

Appendix 1. Berkeley Police Department 2024 Annual Report “Tests for Bias” .................................... 25 

Appendix 2. PAB Data Workbook ................................................................................................................................ 27 

Attachment List ........................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

Attachment 1: Mayor’s Working Group on Fair and Impartial Policing. Proposal to City Council. 

February 23, 2021 ....................................................................................................................................................................29

Attachment 2: Working Group Recommendations Passed by Council. February 23, 2021 ............43

Attachment 3: Summary of BPD Quarterly Updates on Fair and Impartial Policing 

Implementation .......................................................................................................................................................................49

Attachment 4: BPD Three-Pronged Approach to Traffic Enforcement ......................................................58

Attachment 5: Berkeley Police Department Memorandum Titled: “PD Response to PAB FIP 

Implementation Report” .....................................................................................................................................................60



2 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

List of Figures 

Figure 1 Likelihood of stops for Black/African Americans Compared to White Individuals ............... 7 

Figure 2 Percent of Arrest by Race/Ethnicity (April 1, 2021 to October 31, 2023) .............................. 9 

Figure 3 Percent  of Searches by Race/Ethnicity (April 1, 2021 - October 31, 2023) ........................ 10 

Figure 4 Consent Searches by Race/Ethnicity ........................................................................................ 18 

List of Tables 

Table 1 Number of Stops of Non-Berkeley Residents vs. Berkeley Residents by Race/Ethnicity. ...... 8 

Table 2 Number of Arrest by Race/Ethnicity for Reporting Period. ....................................................... 9 

Table 3 Percentage of Stops for Equipment Violations and Other Low-Level Infractions ............... 14 



3 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

Introduction 

On February 23, 2021, the Berkeley City Council (City Council or Council) 

unanimously passed the package of policy recommendations that the Mayor’s 

Working Group on Fair and Impartial Policing (FIP) forwarded to City Council after 

two years of meetings with experts and Berkeley Police Department (BPD) 

representatives (See Attachments 1 and 2). As part of that package, the Police 

Review Commission (PRC) and its successor the Police Accountability Board (PAB) 

were assigned responsibility for “monitoring and assessing” BPD implementation 

of the FIP directives. The directives included a requirement for quarterly updates 

from the BPD to City Council on implementation progress. A chart summarizing 

the BPD updates from June 2021 to October 2023 is provided in Attachment 3. 

The goal of the Mayor’s Fair and Impartial Working Group was to discuss 

ways to address racial disparities in BPD stops, arrests, and searches, as presented 

to the Berkeley community in the 2018 Center for Policing Equity (CPE) report1 

commissioned by the Council. That report found that, given the city’s population 

demographics, Black motorists were 6.5 times more likely to be stopped by 

Berkeley police than White motorists and that Black pedestrians were 4.5 times 

more likely to be stopped than White pedestrians.  

The PAB recognizes the ongoing efforts taken by the BPD to implement the 

Fair and Impartial Policing mandates, as represented in the quarterly updates 

from Chief Louis. This PAB report, submitted pursuant to the PAB’s directive to 

monitor FIP implementation, is an independent assessment of progress to date. 

The focus of this assessment is not only on BPD changes in written policy, but also 

on whether progress has been made in reducing racial disparities in BPD stops, 

arrests, and searches.  

1 Center for Policing Equity. The Science of Justice: Berkeley Police Department, National Justice Database City 
Report. May 2018. https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/Berkeley-CPE-Report-May-2018.pdf 

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/Berkeley-CPE-Report-May-2018.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/Berkeley-CPE-Report-May-2018.pdf


4 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

Before proceeding, it is important to note that a finding of racial disparities 

does not, by that fact alone, indicate racial bias among individual police officers 

or the institution. Disparity is not synonymous with bias or discrimination. A 

measurement of racial disparity simply indicates an inequality or disproportion 

among or between various races on a particular variable (such as police stops), 

whatever the source of that inequality. Bias, on the other hand, can be defined 

as individual or institutional prejudice against a particular group, which may lead 

to disparities. This report focuses on racial disparities, as did the Mayor's Working 

Group on Fair and Impartial Policing and City Council's directives. Several factors 

may account for such disparities. These factors include, but are not limited to, 

socio-economic inequalities associated with race; cultural factors; institutional 

decision making; and, finally, individual officer bias. These factors may act 

independently of each other or in interaction with each other, amplifying their 

potential impact. It is not our goal to untangle the complex web of factors 

responsible for those disparities, nor is it within the scope of our work--or our ability, 

given data and resource limitations--to do so. Instead, the goal is to establish 

policies and practices that have the potential to reduce disparities and curtail 

the impact of any potential bias. 

Key findings include, but are not limited to: 

• The BPD has completed implementation of some FIP Council directives, is

in the process of establishing implementation programs for other FIP

directives, and appears not to have begun implementation of others.

• Racial disparities in vehicle stops by the BPD have decreased slightly since

the CPE report, but remain high

• Racial disparities in pedestrian stops have substantially increased

• Racial disparities in arrests and searches continue to be pronounced

• The number of consent searches has decreased, but racial disparities in

consent searches remain high



5 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

• The percentage of stops for equipment and other non-safety related

infractions declined from 24.8% of all traffic stops in 2022 to 19% in 2023

• A full Early Intervention and Risk Management System is in very early stages

• Enhanced implicit bias training has not begun

Recommendations include, but are not limited to: 

• The BPD quarterly reports on implementation of FIP should focus not only on

policy modifications, but on outcomes, specifically the issue of whether and

how those policy reforms have impacted racial disparities

• The three-pronged approach to traffic enforcement should be reviewed

and further oriented towards reducing low-level, non-safety related stops

• Annual enhanced implicit bias training should be institutionalized, as per

the Council’s FIP directive

• A full Early Intervention and Risk Management System should be adopted

as soon as possible. In the meantime, random audits of officers should be

replaced by targeted audits of “outliers”

• Full accountability must be ensured for officers whose speech or behavior

demonstrates racial animus or other bias and “damage[s] the mission… of

the Berkeley Police Department”

Our report begins with recent statistics on stops, arrests, and searches. As

we will see, a pattern of racial disparities remains since the CPE issued its report in 

2018. While the racial disparity in vehicle stops has fallen slightly, racial disparities 

in pedestrian stops has increased substantially. The fact of racial disparities is not 

an abstract or academic issue. Racial disparities in policing have a serious impact 

on the lives of many Black and Latino/a people. 



6 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

The report then includes a discussion of the status of BPD’s implementation 

efforts, as well as questions that emerge from Chief Louis’s quarterly updates2. We 

conclude with recommendations for the BPD, the PAB, and the Council, with the 

goal of more effectively addressing racial disparities. 

Related to the issue of the meaning of disparities, the BPD presented their 

Annual Report to City Council on March 12, 2024. As part of that report, they 

included “tests for bias” in traffic stops, searches, and use of force.  We have 

examined the analyses presented in that report and note several fundamental 

challenges to their conclusion that BPD traffic stops, searches, and use of force 

are “race-neutral.” See Appendix 1 for a brief discussion of the PAB’s concerns 

with the BPD analysis. 

Fair and Impartial Policing Statistical Profile 

The BPD data that were derived from the Department’s Transparency Hub 

and analyzed by the ODPA and the PAB reveal little progress in reducing racial 

disparities in stops since the CPE report was released in 2018. That report showed 

that for the period 2012-2016, Black motorists were 6.5 times more likely to be 

stopped than White motorists based on Berkeley demographics, and Black 

pedestrians in 2015-2016 were 4.5 more likely to be stopped than White 

pedestrians.  

2 In addition to direction to the Berkeley Police Department to implement reforms, the February 2021 City Council 
action included referral of some FIP recommendations to the public safety reimagining process, and others to be 
“taken up by the PAB”. This report does not address recommendations that were referred to the reimagining 
process. The report substantively addresses one of the three recommendations referred to the PAB (annual 
implicit bias training). 



7 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

Berkeley Police Department statistics show that from April 1, 2021 to 

October 31, 20233, of the 13,620 stops of bicyclists, motorists and pedestrians, 

45.73% were White individuals, 44.77% were Black individuals, and 20.81% were 

Latino/a individuals.4 Based on Berkeley population figures5, Black motorists were 

5.8 times more likely to be stopped by Berkeley police than White motorists. The 

racial disparity has worsened for pedestrian stops, with Black pedestrians now 8.3 

times more likely to be stopped than White pedestrians.6  

Figure 1 Likelihood of stops for Black/African Americans Compared to White Individuals 

3 The April 1, 2021 date was chosen in consideration of the fact that the FIP directives were issued by Council on 
February 23, 2021. The end date of October 31, 2023 was used because we initiated this analysis in December 
2023 and used the data then available. October 3, 2023 was the date of the last full quarterly update from the 
BPD. Unless otherwise noted, the data in this report covers the period from April 1, 2021 to October 31, 2023. 
4 Occasionally, small differences will appear in the data presented here and those in the BPD Transparency Hub. 
These differences, which are minor and do not affect the percentages or ratios reported, are due to periodic data 
updates or modifications made in the BPD Transparency Hub. All the analyses reported are derived from data in 
our “Data Notebook” which is available in Appendix 2. 
5 Population data sources from U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey (ACS) 1-Year Estimates Data 
Profiles, Table DP05 (2022).: 
https://data.census.gov/table/ACSDP5Y2022.DP05?g=040XX00US06_160XX00US0606000&tid=ACSDP5Y2022.DP0
5 
6 In order to calculate the greater likelihood of Black motorists or pedestrians being stopped than White 
individuals, we divided the number of stops of each race/ethnicity by their numbers in the Berkeley population. 

6.5
4.55.79

8.29

Vehicles Pedestrians

Race Disparities in Berkeley Police Stops:

Likelihood of stops for Black/African Americans Compared to White 

Individuals

2015-2016 2021-2023

https://data.census.gov/table/ACSDP5Y2022.DP05?g=040XX00US06_160XX00US0606000&tid=ACSDP5Y2022.DP05
https://data.census.gov/table/ACSDP5Y2022.DP05?g=040XX00US06_160XX00US0606000&tid=ACSDP5Y2022.DP05
https://data.census.gov/table/ACSDP5Y2022.DP05?g=040XX00US06_160XX00US0606000&tid=ACSDP5Y2022.DP05
https://data.census.gov/table/ACSDP5Y2022.DP05?g=040XX00US06_160XX00US0606000&tid=ACSDP5Y2022.DP05


 

8 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

Looking at overall stop data for Berkeley residents only, a significant racial 

disparity persists. Black people residing in Berkeley were 6.55 times as likely to be 

stopped as their White counterparts. The Table below shows the absolute number 

of bicycle, pedestrian and vehicle stops, by race, for residents and non-residents 

of Berkeley. 

Table 1 Number of Stops of Non-Berkeley Residents vs. Berkeley Residents by Race/Ethnicity. 

Race/Ethnicity 

Stops of Non-Berkeley 

Residents, 2021-2023 

Stops of Berkeley 

Residents, 2021-2023 

Black 1615 2814 

Hispanic/Latino(a) 1212 955 

White 1626 3112 

Other 1109 1177 

Total 5562 8058 

 

With respect to arrests, of 2,202 arrests in this period, Black people were 

50.47 percent of the total, White people 34.45 percent, and Latino/as 15.08 

percent. This means that, based on population figures, Black people were 10.4 

times as likely to be arrested as White people in Berkeley, and Latinos were twice 

as likely. Looking at these data a different way, Black people were 6.47 times more 

likely to be arrested than their population would suggest, White people were .62 

times less likely, and Latino/as 1.25 times more likely to arrested. 



9 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

Figure 2 Percent of Arrest by Race/Ethnicity (April 1, 2021 to October 31, 2023) 

The Table below shows the absolute number of arrests by race. 

Table 2 Number of Arrest by Race/Ethnicity for Reporting Period. 

Race/Ethnicity Number of Arrests 

Black 1021 

Hispanic/Latino(a) 305 

White 697 

Other 179 

Grand Total 2202 

With regard to searches, of the 2,421 searches conducted by the BPD 

during the period of April 1, 2021 to October 31, 2023, Black individuals were 46.55 

percent of the total, White individuals were 31.47 percent, and Latino/as were 

13.26 percent. This indicates that Black individuals were 10.5 times more likely to 

be searched compared to White individuals, while Latino individuals were 1.9 

46%

32%

14%

8%

Percent  of Arrests by Race/Ethnicity

April 1, 2021 - October 31, 2023

Black/African

American

White

Hispanic/Latino(a)

Group1



10 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

times more likely.7 Alternatively, Black individuals were 5.97 times more likely to be 

searched than expected based on their population representation, White 

individuals were 0.57 times less likely, and Latino/as were 1.10 times more likely. 

Figure 3 Percent  of Searches by Race/Ethnicity (April 1, 2021 - October 31, 2023) 

Policy and Practices Directive and Reforms 

Reducing stops for low-level infractions and focusing on safety in traffic 

stops. 

The FIP recommendation regarding traffic stops was to “prioritize safety in 

traffic stops” and “discontinue stops for minor offenses.” The FIP Working Group 

saw this as a way to reduce racial disparities and eliminate pretextual traffic stops. 

The motion approved by the City Council was to “Implement a new evidence-

based traffic enforcement model that emphasizes safety as the primary reason 

for traffic stops, rather than merely addressing minor offenses.” Neither the 

Mayor’s Working Group nor the Council provided a clear definition of “minor 

7 Similar to our calculations for stops and arrests, to determine the greater likelihood of Black and Latino/a 
individuals than White individuals to be searched, we divided the number of searches of Black, Latino/a and White 
individuals by their respective numbers in the population. 

47%

13%

31%

9%

Percent  of Searches by Race/Ethnicity 

April1, 2021 - October 31, 2023
Black/African American Hispanic/Latino(a) White Other



 

11 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

offenses.” The PAB recommends that the BPD adopt the definition utilized in 

Senate Bill 50, as outlined in the footnote below.8 

The BPD is using a 3-pronged approach to traffic safety (“Primary Collision 

Factors”; “Community Reports”; and “Community Caretaking”) to fulfill the 

Council directive (See Attachment 4 for BPD Special Order 1106.2). Quarterly BPD 

updates report that implementation of this recommendation is complete.  

The first prong of BPD’s three-pronged approach, known as “Primary 

Collision Factors” or PCF, is generally excellent and data-driven at the local level. 

This prong consists of factors that commonly lead to fatal or severe collisions in 

Berkeley, including unsafe speed, disregarding pedestrian right-of-way at 

crosswalks, failure to yield for turns, red light violations, and stop sign violations. 

One important update to this prong would be to specify not only the 

violation but also the mode of the party at fault (e.g., stop sign violations by drivers 

are a common cause of fatal and severe collisions in Berkeley, but stop sign 

violations by bicyclists are not, and the PCF categories should reflect this). It is 

expected that most, if not all, stops should occur in response to these well-

documented safety issues, following the Council’s directive. 

                                                 
8 In 2023, a Bill was introduced in the California Legislature, SB50 (“An Act to Amend Sections 21 and 21100 of, and 
add Section 2804.5, to the Vehicle Code”), that stipulated that “notwithstanding any other law, a peace officer shall 
not stop or detain the operator of a motor vehicle or bicycle for a low-level infraction…”. The Bill, which was tabled 
after a third reading and may be re-submitted this year, defined a “low-level infraction” as “a violation related to 
the registration of a vehicle or vehicle equipment,” as specified; “a violation related to the positioning or number of 
license plates when the rear license plate is clearly displayed…”; “a violation related to vehicle lighting equipment 
not illuminating, if the violation is limited to a single brake light, headlight, rear license plate, or running light or a 
single bulb in a larger light of the same,” as specified; “a violation related to vehicle bumper equipment,” as specified; 
“a violation related to bicycle equipment or operation,” as specified. 



 

12 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

The second prong (“Community Reports”) consists of “responding to calls 

from community members” and includes such things as “possible DUI driver (i.e., 

car reportedly swerving)”; “driver fallen asleep at red light”; “a variety of unsafe 

driving incidents”; “crime with get-away vehicle description.” While some of these 

community calls no doubt require an immediate response, the category is broad 

and opens the door to potential profiling by proxy. At a minimum, under the 

category of “a variety of unsafe driving incidents,” policies should be put in place 

that specify which calls for service will result in law enforcement action. 

The City Auditor’s data analysis9 shows that only 13% of calls from 

community members resulted in a citation or arrest, compared to 42% of officer-

initiated stops. To effectively reduce the potential for profiling by proxy, analysis 

of this 13% should be conducted to determine what types of community calls are 

most likely to yield a law enforcement response crucial to public safety. The PAB 

recommends that this prong then be substantially reformulated based on the 

data analysis of which types of calls for service result in enforcement actions and 

which are more likely to open the door to profiling by proxy. 

The third prong, “Community Caretaking,” is the least specific and consists 

of three examples: “seatbelt violations”; “distracted driving (hands-free law)”; 

and “DUI”. As described by the BPD, these are not primary collision factors 

according to the California Highway Patrol because they are not the proximate 

cause of a collision. Because this prong is open-ended and consists only of several 

examples, it allows for maximum discretion with no real parameters. 

The PAB recommends more specificity in this prong and that its 

components be based on Berkeley data rather than national statistics, as BPD did 

for Prong 1 (Primary Collision Factors, or PCFs). Specifically, the analysis should 

                                                 
9 Data Analysis of the City of Berkeley’s Police Response, 07/02/2021 

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/2022-01/Data-Analysis-Berkeley-Police-Response.pdf 



 

13 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

examine which other factors (non-PCFs) are highly associated with severe and 

fatal collisions in Berkeley. The open-ended quality of this prong may contribute 

to more non-safety related stops than is called for in the Council directive. If more 

specificity is not possible or feasible, this prong should be eliminated. 

In addition to further clarification and specification of factors and policies 

related to prongs two and three, future BPD updates to Council should include 

statistical information enabling an analysis of the impact of the three-prong 

approach on reducing or eliminating stops for low-level offenses in a manner that 

supports an overall assessment, as well as an understanding of the impact of the 

approach on reducing racial disparities.  

The PAB analysis of vehicle stops reveals that little progress has been made 

on reducing racial disparities. Given this finding, careful scrutiny of the three-

pronged approach needs to be undertaken, with future BPD updates analyzing 

disparity outcomes and focusing on their reduction, as appropriate. 

Our analysis of BPD raw data on traffic stops10 in 2022 (when the three-

pronged approach was established) and the first three quarters of 2023 reveals 

that the number of traffic violation stops increased from 2883 in 2022 to 3297 in 

the first three quarters of 2023. The percentage of stops for equipment and other 

such low-level infractions declined from 24.8% in 2022 to 19% in 2023. While the 

percentage of low-level stops thus declined, their numbers are still relatively high 

                                                 
10 For this calculation, we included all vehicle stops for 2022 and for the first three quarters of 2023. The BPD data 
include the primary reason for each stop. From these raw data we were able to count all stops for low-level 
equipment violations or other non-safety related violations, for example misplaced registration tags, failure to dim 
beams, faulty window installation, etc. The BPD data included a few categories—such as those relating to improper 
parking, trespassing, bicycle helmet infractions, littering, and vehicle theft—that were not appropriate to include in 
these counts of traffic violations. We excluded those few categories (n=79 for 2022; n=70 for 2023) from our 
calculations. 



 

14 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

despite the three-pronged approach and the directive that such stops be 

minimized.  

Table 3 Percentage of Stops for Equipment Violations and Other Low-Level Infractions 

Year Traffic Stops % of Stops for Equipment violations and other low-

level infractions 

2022 2883 24.8% 

2023 3297 19% 

 

Clear, evidence-based definition of stops of criminal suspects. 

The FIP Working Group recommended “us[ing] a clear, evidence-based 

definition for stops of criminal suspects.” This was not meant to be primarily about 

traffic stops but all stops of criminal suspects, including motorists, cyclists and 

pedestrians. Following this recommendation, Council directed the BPD to amend 

policies “reaffirming and clarifying that the Berkeley Police Department will use a 

clear, evidence-based definition for stops of criminal suspects.” The Department’s 

quarterly updates state that the BPD “is establishing a precision based policing 

model that considers data and public safety. This model aims to reduce the 

number of stops that studies have shown had minimal impact on public safety.”  

The PAB appreciates the BPD June 2023 and October 2023 update 

statement that “ensuring that we implement approaches that identify and work 

to reduce racial disparities will be a cornerstone to our evidence-based 

approaches.” However, without more specifics about the department’s 

“precision-based policing model” and “a feedback loop with information flowing 

both ways”, it is difficult to assess whether these additions have the potential to 

reduce racial disparities. More specificity in this context is particularly critical as 

the data presented in this report indicate that racial disparities remain high.  

The BPD June and October 2023 updates also state that this “feedback 

loop … creates an accountability measure.” Does this mean there is 



 

15 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

accountability for racial disparities? If so, what does it consist of? The next BPD 

update should include greater specificity regarding precision-based policing, 

feedback loops, and accountability measures. Further, and significantly, none of 

the BPD updates have included a definition of what constitutes legitimate stops 

for criminal suspects, evidence-based or otherwise. Although the BPD indicated 

that this recommendation was implemented as of September 2022, a definition is 

still outstanding. 

Only use race and ethnicity as determining factors together with other 

clear criteria. 

BPD updates indicate that this recommendation has been completed 

because formal policies, state law, and the Constitution prohibit using race as the 

defining factor in making stops, arrests, and searches. The PAB is concerned that 

the BPD suggests no change is needed; the question is not whether BPD policies 

or state or federal law allow the use of race as a defining factor—clearly, they do 

not. The question is how to prevent discretionary actions in the field from 

inadvertently introducing race as the determining factor. Most important, how 

are race and ethnicity used as determining factors “together with other clear 

criteria”? Future updates should include more specificity on this important 

question of how race and ethnicity may be used with other factors. Examples 

may be useful here. 

Enhanced Implicit Bias Training 

The FIP directives passed by Council “require enhanced annual implicit bias 

training for police.” The BPD updates state that there has been “ongoing training 

in topics such as implicit bias, racial profiling…”. The PAB has been informed by 

the BPD that “The topic of bias is covered as a subtopic throughout various 

trainings” such as de-escalation and tactical communication. This likely falls short 

of the enhanced annual implicit bias training that was called for in the Council 

directive. Full compliance with the Council directive requires that the BPD install 



 

16 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

annual intense implicit bias training, not the less intensive approach to implicit bias 

as a subtopic to other materials as currently practiced.  

Early Intervention System (EIS)11 

An effective EIS was a central component of the FIP recommendations, 

and the focus—as with the FIP program as a whole-- was on racial disparities. As 

the Working Group stated in its presentation to Council in February 2021, an 

effective Early Intervention System would “involve identifying officer outliers in 

stops, searches, and use of force and their outcomes and examining the reasons 

for racial disparities.” Racial disparities take a back seat in the BPD quarterly 

updates, including in its description of an amended EIS program. Beyond this 

important omission, BPD updates have been inconsistent across quarterly reports 

with regard to how this directive has been implemented (See Attachment 3). 

After relatively minor tweaking, the BPD reported that the EIS directive had been 

completed. 

Additionally, recent updates report that periodic audits of several randomly 

chosen officers have been added to the EIS process. While audits of a few 

randomly chosen officers may occasionally be useful, the intent of the FIP was to 

focus on “outliers”, a neutral term of art that refers to officers whose performance 

on certain indicators is outside the BPD average. As the focus of the FIP was on 

racial disparities, in the case of EIS it is important to focus on those units or officers 

for whom stops are disproportionately numerous and/or racial disparities most 

pronounced. The allegations of racism, disdain for the unhoused, and implicit 

                                                 
11 The PAB acknowledges the Council's allocation of funding for designing and implementing a comprehensive Early 
Intervention and Risk Management System (EIRMS). However, the $100,000 appropriation for the evaluation, design 
and implementation of an EIRMS is unlikely to be sufficient. Therefore, the budget for the EIRMS should be 
augmented to support not only its design but its near-term implementation. 



 

17 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

arrest quotas in the Downtown Bike Force have drawn attention to the 

importance of such a directed focus when doing EIS audits.  

In April 2023, City Council referred $100,000 to the June 2023 budget to hire 

a consultant for the design and help with implementing a new Early Intervention 

and Risk Management System. It will take some time before that project is 

complete. In the interim, EIS audits should be focused on officers who are outliers 

on the variables stipulated in the Department’s EIS, with a particular focus on 

racial disparities in stops, arrests, and searches. In addition, a designated PAB 

Member should serve as an EIS observer. With regard to the latter, the PAB is 

pleased that observation by a PAB Member has recently been agreed to by the 

Chief. 

Written consent search forms 

The PAB is pleased that this has been implemented (Policy 311.3). An 

understanding of the implementation process and its effect would be improved 

by the inclusion of data in the quarterly BPD reports. Dr. Frank Baumgartner and 

his team (2018) found that in North Carolina, consent searches declined by 75% 

in cities that required written permission.  

PAB analysis of BPD data reveals that the number of consent searches decreased 

from 188 in 2021, to 123 in 2022, and 69 through the first three quarters of 2023. 

While the number of consent searches has gone down since the introduction of 

written consent forms, racial disparities in these discretionary searches remain 

high. In 2021, 44% of consent searches were of Black individuals, 32% were of 

White individuals, and 16% were of Latinos. Two years later, the respective 

percentages were 43%, 30%, and 19%. In other words, while the absolute number 

of people of color undergoing consent searches has decreased with the 



 

18 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

implementation of written consent forms, the racial disparities in these 

discretionary searches have not.12 

Figure 4 Consent Searches by Race/Ethnicity 

 

Warrantless searches of people on supervised release status 

BPD Policy 311.6, as adopted with agreement between the PRC and the 

BPD and incorporated into the FIP directives, limited warrantless searches of 

people on supervised release status unless there was reasonable suspicion that 

they had committed, were committing, or were about to commit a crime. This 

policy was modified by City Council on July 26, 2022, to make a distinction 

between people on supervised release for violent crimes (who would be subject 

                                                 
12 These racial disparities in consent searches are roughly comparable to the disparities in all searches. As we saw 
above, for the period 2021 through the first three quarters of 2023, there were 2507 searches, with 47% of these 
searches Black people, 32% White people and 13% Latinos.  
Source: https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2023-04-11 Item 25 Referral 100%2C000 to the 
June%2C 2023.pdf 

44% 43%

16%

19%

32%
30%

8% 8%

2021 2023

Consent Searches by Race/Ethnicity

Black/African American Hispanic/Latino White Other

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2023-04-11%20Item%2025%20Referral%20100%2C000%20to%20the%20June%2C%202023.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2023-04-11%20Item%2025%20Referral%20100%2C000%20to%20the%20June%2C%202023.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2023-04-11%20Item%2025%20Referral%20100%2C000%20to%20the%20June%2C%202023.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2023-04-11%20Item%2025%20Referral%20100%2C000%20to%20the%20June%2C%202023.pdf


 

19 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

to warrantless searches) as opposed to non-violent crimes (for whom reasonable 

suspicion would be required for a search).  

The Department under Chief Greenwood had considered the violent/non-

violent distinction a challenging one to make in practice and recommended the 

“reasonable suspicion” standard for all searches of people on supervised release. 

Have officers found it difficult to implement the “violent”/“non-violent” distinction 

as Chief Greenwood had suggested? What is the impact of this policy revision on 

numbers of, and racial disparities in, arrests and searches of people on probation 

and parole? Future BPD updates should continue to address what, if any, impact 

this 2022 change in policy has had on racial disparities.  

Since introduction of the 311.6 policy change in 2020, BPD data no longer 

included “probation or parole search” as a category. This made sense since those 

searches were no longer permissible (absent reasonable suspicion). However, 

since the modification in 2022, probation and parole searches (and other 

supervised release searches) were allowed if the individual was on probation or 

parole for a violent offense. Therefore, BPD data should once again include these 

searches in their data.  

Profiling by proxy 

According to Chief Louis’s June 2023 update, the Communications Manual 

“has been amended to address handling cases involving profiling by proxy.” 

Further, dispatchers “are instructed to be cognizant and screen for profiling by 

proxy calls.” More specifics need to be provided. Exactly what does the 

“instruction” consist of? What has the effect been on racial disparities in 

departmental response to calls for service? As detailed in the City Auditor’s report 

cited above, law-enforcement actions are lower in stops initiated by the public 

than in officer-initiated stops. This suggests that more targeted dispatcher 

instructions and call-screening for profiling by proxy may be necessary. 



 

20 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

Resources on police-civilian encounters. 

The PAB is pleased that the business card directive has been fulfilled. That 

provision was to ensure that business cards with information on how to commend 

police officers or file misconduct complaints were distributed upon each 

officer/civilian encounter. However, the body-worn camera footage that the PAB 

has received in conjunction with individual misconduct complaints does not seem 

to show any distribution of business cards as directed by Council.  

 

Fire racist officers identified through social media and other media 

screens 

BPD Policy 1029 (“Employee Speech, Expression, and Social Networking”) 

stipulates that employees of the BPD whose speech or expression “tends to 

compromise or damage the mission, function, or reputation…of the Berkeley 

Police Department” will be held accountable. Two issues arise here: 1) The FIP 

recommendation included media scans to ensure consistency with this policy, yet 

this proactive approach does not seem to have been implemented; 2) The FIP 

recommendation was that “racist officers identified through social media…” shall 

be fired. The current Policy 1029 is not specific and requires only “accountability”. 

Thus, it is not clear if this FIP directive has been implemented. One way to move 

forward on this directive would be to be more specific on what exactly 

“accountability” means in this context and what preliminary steps would be taken 

prior to an officer’s termination. 

Require regular analysis of BPD stop, search, and use of force data 

As noted in the BPD quarterly reports, a Transparency Hub was developed 

that provides raw data through an Open Data Portal. While this allows members 

of the public who have the time and ability to analyze the data, the BPD’s Data 

Analyst should provide more detailed analysis of these data with a focus on racial 

disparities, as we have done in this report.  



 

21 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

Make resources on police-civilian encounters publicly available such as 

through RAHEEM.org 

This Council directive is mentioned in the BPD quarterly updates, but no 

information is provided regarding its implementation status. 

Conclusions and Recommendations 

Racial disparities in stops, arrest, and searches remain high, and there is little 

public accountability for the overall results of the FIP effort due to a lack of 

statistical reporting or outcome analysis in BPD quarterly updates. While some 

policy changes have been implemented by the BPD, modification of these 

changes is needed in some areas. Other FIP recommendations have not been 

implemented.  

The PAB offers the following recommendations for action by BPD, the PAB, 

and City Council with the goals of improving upon steps that have already been 

taken, ensuring that no directives remain unfulfilled, and establishing an 

expectation for future BPD updates to include analysis of racial disparity 

outcomes. 

Recommendations to the Berkeley Police Department  

1. Three-prong approach.  

a. Definition of Low-Level Traffic Infractions: A definition consistent with 

SB 50 should be adopted. 

b. Primary Collision Factors: This prong should specify the mode of the 

party at fault.  

c. Community Reports: Under the category of "a variety of unsafe 

driving incidents," policies should be put in place that specify which 

calls for service will result in law enforcement action. That 

specification should be derived from an analysis of the 13% of calls 

from community members that resulted in a citation or arrest, as per 

the City Auditor’s July 2021 report. 



 

22 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

d. Community Caretaking: More specificity is needed in this prong, and 

its components should be based on Berkeley data rather than 

national statistics, as is done for Prong 1 (Primary Collision Factors). 

Specifically, the analysis should examine which other factors (non-

PCFs) are highly associated with severe and fatal collisions in 

Berkeley. The open-ended quality of this prong may contribute to 

more non-safety related stops than is called for in the Council 

directive. If more specificity is not possible or feasible, this prong 

should be eliminated. 

e. Reporting: Future BPD updates on FIP implementation should include 

statistical information enabling an analysis of the impact of the three-

prong approach on reducing or eliminating stops for low-level 

offenses—a primary focus of the Council directive—in a manner that 

supports an overall assessment as well as an understanding of the 

impact of the approach on reducing racial disparities in traffic stops. 

2. Evidence-based definition for stops of criminal suspects. 

a. Establish an evidence-based definition for stops of criminal suspects. 

b. Explain how the precision-based policing, feedback loops, and 

accountability measures, referenced in BPD FIP implementation 

updates in relation to this recommendation, address the directive to 

establish an evidence-based definition for stops of criminal suspects. 

3. Enhanced implicit bias training: Ensure that intensive annual training 

dedicated to the topic of implicit bias is delivered to BPD personnel per the 

Council’s directive. 

4. EIS: Pending the deployment of a new Early Intervention and Risk 

Management system, EIS audits should be focused on officers who are 

outliers on the variables stipulated in the Department’s EIS, with a particular 

focus on racial disparities in stops, arrests, and searches. A designated PAB 

Member should serve as an observer in this process, as has been informally 



 

23 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

agreed to. Future audit reports should include the scope of what was 

reviewed and a clear statement of findings, within the confines of officer 

confidentiality.   

5. Written consent searches: Future reporting to council should include the 

number of consent searches conducted per reporting period and their 

effect on racial disparities in searches, with a comparison to consent search 

numbers before implementation.  

6. Warrantless searches of people on supervised release: Future FIP updates 

should identify the impact of the new BPD Policy 311.6 on the numbers of, 

and racial disparities in, searches and arrests of people on probation and 

parole. 

7. Profiling by proxy: Future BPD updates should specify what instruction 

dispatchers are given on the topic of profiling by proxy, as well as any 

impact the instruction and corresponding Communications Manual 

amendments have had on racial disparities in departmental response to 

calls for service. 

8. Business cards: Ensure that business cards are distributed as mandated by 

the Council directive. 

9. Make resources on police-civilian encounters publicly available, such as 

through RAHEEM.org. 

Recommendations to the Police Accountability Board 

1. Scenario-based training: The 2021 Council specifically referred to the PAB 

oversight of the implementation of a scenario-based training component 

in the existing officer training required by the California Penal Code. This 

topic will be agendized for discussion at a future PAB meeting, including 

the appropriateness of, and ability of, the PAB to oversee departmental 

training. 



 

24 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

2. Crisis Intervention Team (CIT): The 2021 Council item refers to the PAB the 

acceleration of CIT activity. This will be taken up for discussion in future PAB 

meetings. 

Recommendations to the Berkeley City Council  

1. Establish metrics to assess the success of the implementation of FIP 

directives. Currently the BPD appears to be focused entirely on policy, 

and on tests of bias, as evidenced in its recently published Annual Report. 

The PAB has focused instead on outcomes, addressing the key question of 

whether racial disparities have decreased in any of the areas subject to 

FIP directives. 

2. Eliminate reporting requirements for recommendations that the PAB 

ascertains have been fully implemented. 

3. Require BPD to report biannually on: 

a. Traffic stops by each prong of their 3-prong framework and by race 

within each prong. 

b. Stop, search, and arrest data by probation/parole status and race. 

c. Calls for service by the race of the reporter and reportee. 

Ensure that employees of the BPD whose speech or behavior is inconsistent with 

fair and impartial policing be held accountable.  



 

25 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

Appendix 

Appendix 1. Berkeley Police Department 2024 Annual Report “Tests for 

Bias” 

The PAB has several concerns about the adequacy of the three tests conducted for stops 

and searches (use of force is not part of the FIP focus): “At-fault collision demographics”: 

“yield rate analysis”; and, the “veil of darkness”.  

1. The at-fault collision test is the most problematic of these analyses. This BPD test 

purports to compare the parties at fault in collisions, by race, to the rate of police 

stops by race. Because they find that the proportion of stops for each race is 

approximately the same as the proportion of each race at fault in collisions, they 

conclude that police stops are “race-neutral”. In other words, while not citing 

disparity statistics, the BPD implies that the racial disparity in stops is the result of 

Black motorists’ more dangerous driving.   

There are numerous problems with that analysis, including the following: 

• In the interest of focusing on “discretionary stops,” which as they 

note are most likely to involve potential bias, the BPD only includes 

in their analysis stops that were officer-initiated. Curiously, however, 

it omits the most discretionary stops of all—those based on 

equipment violations, registration or license plate infractions and 

other such low-level offenses that make up 19% of all vehicle stops.  

• The “at-fault collision” side of this equation is also problematic. Only 

those collisions for which the police were called to the scene or were 

nearby when the accident happened, and/or for which a written 

police report was filed, are included in the analysis. Personal 

experience suggests that many if not most collisions are not reported 

to the police.  

2. The BPD’s yield rate analysis cites the 2024 RIPA Annual Report that shows there 

were no statistically significant differences in rates of discovery of contraband in 

searches of Black people and White people in Berkeley. This is an important RIPA 

finding. It must be qualified, however, by the RIPA Board’s advice on interpreting 

the finding. As the RIPA Board notes, when search rates are higher and discovery 



 

26 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

rates lower for Black people than for white people, it can be concluded that racial 

bias was involved in the searches. However, “[w]hen these statistics do not move 

in opposite directions, it is more difficult to determine whether disparate treatment 

is present.” (RIPA 2024 Annual Report; Appendix B.3, p. 46).  

3. The veil of darkness test is an industry-wide standard for testing racial bias. It 

assumes that if racial bias exists in vehicle stops, people of color would be more 

likely to be stopped during the day than at night when it is presumably less possible 

to discern motorists’ race. The BPD analysis compares vehicle stops at the “inter-

twilight” period around 6:30 pm during daylight savings time (when it is light) and 

standard time (when it is dark). The BPD finding is that the stop rates by race are 

comparable in the light and in the dark, and that “this is what we would expect 

to see if those stops were being made based on race-neutral factors.” This is quite 

different from the finding of Stanford researchers who analyzed 95 million traffic 

stops across the United States using the veil of darkness test and found statistically 

significant racial disparities13. The BPD finding for Berkeley is a positive one, but we 

need more details here. It is possible that stops occurring in the inter-twilight period 

in Berkeley in one year would not be sufficient in number to draw statistically valid 

inferences. Finally, while the veil of darkness is an industry-standard, several 

cautions must be applied. As numerous scientists have explained, and the BPD 

report acknowledges, both street lighting and car profiling may skew results.  

 

In sum, we cannot confidently conclude from these BPD tests for bias that it is not 

a factor in racial disparities in BPD vehicle stops and searches. More rigorous 

studies would be required to untangle the web of socio-economic, cultural, 

institutional, and individual factors—and their interactions—that produce these 

racial disparities.  

  

                                                 
13 https://www.nature.com/articles/s41562-020-0858-1 



 

27 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

Appendix 2. PAB Data Workbook 

To access a copy of the Data Workbook, please use the following link: 

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/PAB%20Data%20Workbook_2024

%20FIP%20Implementation%20Report%20.xlsx 

 

 

  

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/PAB%20Data%20Workbook_2024%20FIP%20Implementation%20Report%20.xlsx
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/PAB%20Data%20Workbook_2024%20FIP%20Implementation%20Report%20.xlsx
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/PAB%20Data%20Workbook_2024%20FIP%20Implementation%20Report%20.xlsx
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/PAB%20Data%20Workbook_2024%20FIP%20Implementation%20Report%20.xlsx


 

28 Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

Attachment List 

1. Mayor’s Working Group on Fair and Impartial Policing. Proposal to City 

Council. February 23, 2021. 

2. Working Group Recommendations Passed by Council. February 23, 2021 

3. Summary of BPD Quarterly Updates on Fair and Impartial Policing 

Implementation 

4. BPD Three-Pronged Approach to Traffic Enforcement 

5. Berkeley Police Department Memorandum Titled: “PD Response to PAB FIP 

Implementation Report” 

 

  

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-02-23%20Special%20Item%2001%20Report%20and%20Recommendations.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-02-23%20Special%20Item%2001%20Report%20and%20Recommendations.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-02-23%20Special%20Item%2001%20Report%20and%20Recommendations.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-02-23%20Special%20Item%2001%20Report%20and%20Recommendations.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/02-23-Special-Annotated-Agenda.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/02-23-Special-Annotated-Agenda.pdf
https://bpd-transparency-initiative-berkeleypd.hub.arcgis.com/pages/traffic-safety?ref=berkeleyscanner.com
https://bpd-transparency-initiative-berkeleypd.hub.arcgis.com/pages/traffic-safety?ref=berkeleyscanner.com


 

Attachment 1: Mayor’s Working Group on Fair and Impartial Policing. Proposal to 

City Council. February 23, 2021 

 

 

 

  

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-02-23%20Special%20Item%2001%20Report%20and%20Recommendations.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-02-23%20Special%20Item%2001%20Report%20and%20Recommendations.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-02-23%20Special%20Item%2001%20Report%20and%20Recommendations.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-02-23%20Special%20Item%2001%20Report%20and%20Recommendations.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-02-23%20Special%20Item%2001%20Report%20and%20Recommendations.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-02-23%20Special%20Item%2001%20Report%20and%20Recommendations.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-02-23%20Special%20Item%2001%20Report%20and%20Recommendations.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021-02-23%20Special%20Item%2001%20Report%20and%20Recommendations.pdf


Page 13 of 201 

DRAFT 

The Mayor's Working Group on Fair and Impartial Policing 

Pol icy Proposals 

Developing and implementing reforms that will effectively reduce existing racial disparities 

requires changes at several levels. The following recommendations include setting new policy, 

updating institutional structures, and mandating individual accountability. Their implementation 

and ongoing effectiveness require supportive leadership, transparency and police 

accountability. 

Executive Summary. Mayor's Working Group on Fair and Impartial Policing (hereafter, "the 

working group") focused on reducing racial disparities in stops and_searches and improving 

community relationships damaged by the racially disparate practices in stops and searches. 

This report advances the following recommendations for BPD practices: 

• Focus on public safety and eliminate stops for low-level offenses not directly impacting

public safety.

• Use race and ethnicity as determining factors in stops only when paired with clear,

evidence-based criteria.

• Institute annual implicit bias training and scenario-based training for California Penal

Code 13519.4, prohibiting racial or identity profiling.

• Establish a truly effective Early Intervention System and risk management process to

ensure department accountability and identify officers who are outliers in stops,

searches, dispositions, and outcomes.

• Limit warrantless searches of individuals on supervised release status such as Post

Release Community Supervision (PRCS), probation, or parole.

• Require written consent for consent searches.

• Include evaluations of cultural competence in hiring and promotion, and fire officers who

have expressed racist attitudes and/or are identified as members of racist groups.

The report also advances these recommendations for the Berkeley City Council and/or the City 

of Berkeley: 

• Hire a consultant to create a plan for monitoring and reporting on the implementation of

these recommendations.

• Ensure the creation of a Specialized Care Unit with crisis-response field workers, as

included in the recent contract for a community-process to establish an SCU.

• Ensure a robust community engagement process, including annual surveys and

community forums

• Require quarterly analysis of stop, search, and use of force data by City Auditor and/or

the PRC.

• Adopt and carry out the compliance and accountability system outlined in this document.

1 



Page 14 of 201 

DRAFT 

Proposed Actions 

Table 1 provides a proposed action for each recommendation in the body and 

appendices of this draft report. 

Action Recommendations 
• Focus traffic stops on safety
• Use a clear, evidence-based definition for stops of criminal suspects
• Use race and ethnicity as determining factors in stops only when paired with clear,

evidence-based criteria
• Eliminate stops for low-level offenses
• Implement an Early Intervention System {EIS) and a risk-management structure
• Immediately release stop, arrest, calls for service and use of force data from 2012

Direct the City to present to the Working Group
Manager to 

• Limit warrantless searches of individuals on supervised release status such as
implement key Post Release Community Supervision {PRCS), probation, or parole
recommendations, 

• Reguire written consent for all consent searches
with at minimum, 
quarterly progress 

• Address Profiling by Proxy {PAS Policy Development, Dispatcher Training)

reports to the PAS 
• Fire racist police officers identified through social media and other media screens

and/or the Working 
• Address Profiling by Proxy {Council develop & pass CAREN policy)

Group • Reguire regular analysis of BPD stop, search, and use of force data
• Make resources on police-civilian encounters more publicly available such as

RAHEEM.org
• Adopt Compliance and Accountability Mechanisms

a. Hire consultant to develop implementation plan
• For any individual detained, BPD officers shall provide a business card with info on

a website similar to RAHEEM and info on complain process with PAS

• The City should create a formalized feedback system to gauge community
Refer to be response to ongoing reforms and ensure this constructive input system is
included in the institutionalized and includes a basic report card and guarterly neighborhood
process to check-ins
reimagine public • Conduct a baseline community survey .
safetv 

• Include a scenario-based training component in the existing officer training
Refer to the Police reguired by California Penal Code 13519.4
Accountability • Reguire enhanced annual implicit bias training for police
Board • Accelerate Crisis Intervention Team {CIT) activity

• Evaluate the impact of these proposals on racial disparities in stops and searches,
Follow-up with PAS using regular updates to stop and search data
and/or Fair and 

• Conduct a regular community survey and annual community forums on Police and
Impartial Working Public Safety
Group 

Recommendations • Fund and implement a specialized care unit for mental health crises
already underway 

• Conduct a Capacity Study of police calls and responses and use of officer time
outside of case work

Outstanding - • Include community member participation and feedback in the hiring process
No Action 

• Include the following for Performance Appraisal Reports
Recommended 

2 



Page 15 of 201 

DRAFT 

Reducing Disparities in Vehicle, Pedestrian, and Bicycle Stops & 

Searches: 
1. Focus traffic stops on safety

According to Dr. Frank Baumgartner's 2018 book, Suspect Citizens, "Safety stops are 

those aimed at enforcing the rules of the road to decrease the likelihood of an accident" 

(pg. 191 ). The types of stops falling into this traffic safety category may include: 

• Excessive speeding1 

• Running a stop sign or stop light

• Unsafe movement

• Driving while intoxicated

2. Use a clear, evidence-based definition for stops of criminal suspects

Dr. Baumgartner's analysis2reveals that "investigatory stops" (stops that use a minor 

infraction as a pretext for investigating rather than to prevent or reduce dangerous 

behavior pgs. 53-55) allow for the most officer discretion and open the possibility of 

implicit bias or "reliance on cultural heuristics" (pg. 191 ). Based on analyses of more 

than 9 million stops, Baumgartner's team found that 47% were investigatory and that 

they added substantially to the racial disparity statistics. Thus, investigatory stops and 

stops of criminal suspects shall be restricted to those made because the person and/or 

vehicle fits a description in relation to a specific crime.34 

Since the Oakland Police Department (OPD) has implemented evidence-based 

methods, the number of African American civilians stopped by the OPD has declined 

Since Oakland Police Department has implemented evidence-based methods, the 

number of African American civilians stopped has declined from 19,185 in 2017 to 7,346 

in 2019, a drop of 62% and a stop disparity rate reduction of almost 60%,5 with no 

corresponding increase in crime (Captain Chris Bolton presentation, 7/15/2020). 

3. Use race and ethnicity as relevant factors when determining law enforcement action

only when provided as part of a description of a crime and suspect that is credible

and relevant to the locality and timeframe of the crime and only in combination with

other specific descriptive and physical characteristics. 6•
7 

Specific descriptive and physical characteristics may include, for example: the gender, 

age, height, weight, clothing, tattoos and piercings of the suspect, the make and model 

of the car, and the time and location of the crime. Simple race and ethnicity alone are not 

1 https://www.idrivesafely.com/dmv/california/laws/traffic-tickets-and-violations/,
https://www.martenslawfirm.com/bloq/2015/november/what-is-excessive-speedinq-/ 
2 Suspect Citizens, pp. 190-192 
3 Eberhardt, J. L. (2016). Strategies for change: Research initiatives and recommendations to improve police
community relations in Oakland. Calif Stanford University 
4 This definition was created by Dr. Jennifer Eberhardt in collaboration with the Oakland Police Department. 
5 This is the percentage of African American stops within all discretionary non-intel led stops made by Police Area 2 
officers fell from 76% in September 2017 to 31% in September 2018 
6 Southern Poverty Law Center, 10 Best Practices for Writing Policies Against Racial Profiling 
7 CA Penal Code 

3 



Page 16 of 201 

DRAFT 

satisfactory as bases for reasonable suspicion under the law, and amount to racial 

profiling. 

4. Eliminate stops for low-level offenses

According to the presentation to the Working Group by Captain Bolton of the OPD, 

Oakland significantly reduced stops for these low-level, non-public safety related 

offenses, resulting in a reduction in the number of African Americans being stopped and 

a reduced stop-disparity rate, with no effect on crime rates {homicides and injury 

shootings went down during the same period). There is often overlap between 

"investigatory stops" and "stops for low-level offenses," as the latter may be used as a 

pretext for investigation. The types of stops falling into these categories may include: 

• Equipment violations

• Not wearing a seat belt

• Improper use of high beams

• Violating a regulation (e.g. expired license tags)

• Stop purposes recorded as "other''

5. Implement an Early Intervention System (EIS) and a risk-management structure

These measures to ensure individual accountability have operated successfully in 

Oakland and many other localities for some time. They involve identifying officer outliers 

in stops, searches, and use of force and their outcomes and examining the reasons for 

racial disparities. Existing software programs to assist BPD in implementing an EIS 

could be utilized or BPD can build its own system. 

These programs operate to identify officers who are a danger either to themselves or to 

the public. They are referred to as "risk management" systems because they help limit 

the financial liability of the City and hence its taxpayers. They may address a broad 

range of concerns, but in this document, we only consider their use with regard to racial 

disparities. Elements of this process include the following steps: 

a. Evaluate and assess stop incidents for legality and enforcement yield.

b. Analyze data to determine whether racial disparities are generalized across the

force or are concentrated in a smaller subset of outlier officers or squads/groups

of officers. To the extent that the problem is generalized across the department,

supervisors as well as line officers should be re-trained and monitored, and

department recruitment, training, and structure should be reviewed. In addition,

department policy should be examined for their impacts.

c. Where disparities are concentrated in an individual or a group of officers, with no

race-neutral legitimate evidence for this behavior in specific cases, initiate an

investigation to determine the cause for the disparity. Evaluate whether there are

identifiable causes contributing to racially disparate stop rates and high or low

rates of resulting enforcement actions exhibited by outlying officers. Determine

and address any trends and patterns among officers with disparate stop rates. In

the risk management process, the responsible personnel in the chain of

4 



Page 17 of 201 

DRAFT 

command reviews and discusses the available information about the subject 

officer and the officer's current behavior. 

d. Absent a satisfactory explanation for racially disparate behavior, monitor the

officer .. Options for the supervisor in these cases include reviewing additional

body-worn camera footage, supervisor ride-alongs, and other forms of

monitoring. Further escalation to intervention, if necessary, may include a higher

form of supervision, with even closer oversight. If performance fails to improve,

command should consider other options including breaking up departmental

units, transfer of officers to other responsibilities, etc. The goal of this process is

to achieve trust and better community relations between the department as a

whole and all the people in Berkeley. Formal discipline is always a last resort

unless there are violations of Department General Orders, in which case this

becomes an IAB matter.

e. Identify officers who may have problems affecting their ability to make

appropriate judgments, and monitor and reduce time pressures, stress and

fatigue on officers.

f. An outside observer from the PRC shall sit in on the risk management and/or EIS

program. Reports from these meetings, or other accurate statistical summary,

can be given to the commission without identifying any officers' names.

g. Report the results of this data analysis quarterly.

6. Immediately release the following data to the Working Group:

a. All data given to the Center for Policing Equity (CPE) - This data includes:

i. Calls for Service (January 1, 2012 - December 2016)

ii. Use of Force Data (January 1, 2012- December 31, 2016)

iii. Crime Report Data (January 1, 2012 - December 31, 2016)

b. STOP DATA- this data shall include information on "call type," similar to the data

used by the Center for Policing Equity. The timeframe would be January 1, 2012

to present.

c. USE OF FORCE DATA - This data was used in the analysis presented in the

CPE report. Along with the CPE data, it would be helpful to have more recent

Use of Force data. The timeframe would be January 1, 2012 to present.

d. DEIDENTIFIED STOP & ARREST DATA- To determine if there are any

problematic patterns among certain officers, or perhaps pairs of officers, data

that we can be attached to anonymized individuals. The timeframe for this data

would be January 1, 2012 to present.

e. ADDITIONAL ARREST DATA- Currently, the Open Data Portal posts arrest data

from January 1, 2015. The timeframe for this data would be January 1, 2012 to

present day.

f. ADDITIONAL CALLS FOR SERVICE - Currently, Calls for Service data are

posted for the last 180 days. The timeframe for this data would be January 1,

2012 to present.

5 



Page 18 of 201 

DRAFT 

7. Limit warrantless searches of individuals on supervised release status, including

probation, Post Release Community Supervision (PRCS), and parole, absent evidence

of imminent danger

California is one of a handful of states that allow high-discretion, suspicionless 

searches of probationers and parolees. The following was passed by the Police 

Review Commission on 9/23/2020 and the Working Group endorses this approach: 

"In accordance with California law, individuals on probation, parole, Post Release 

Community Supervision, or other supervised release status may be subject to 

warrantless search as a condition of their probation. Officers shall only conduct 

probation or parole searches to further a legitimate law enforcement purpose. 

Searches shall not be conducted in an arbitrary, capricious, or harassing fashion. 

However, under Berkeley policy, officers shall not detain and search a person on 

probation or parole solely because the officer is aware of that person's probation or 

parole status. 

The decision to detain a person and conduct a probation or parole search, or 

otherwise enforce probation or parole conditions, should be made, at a minimum, in 

connection with articulable facts that create a reasonable suspicion that a person may 

have committed a crime, be committing a crime, or be about to commit a crime.: 

8. Require written consent for all consent searches

Baumgartner (pp. 195-209) and his team found that in cities requiring written consent 

to perform a consent search, these searches declined by 75%. Since people of color 

are disproportionately the subjects of these searches, it makes sense that a significant 

reduction would lead to fewer consent searches for people of color. 

Examining three cities in North Carolina, Baumgartner found that in cities where there 

was resistance by leadership to the new written-consent policy, there was a 

substitution effect, such that as consent searches went down, probable cause 

searches went up. However, the substitution effect seemed to be directly correlated 

with leadership priorities. The chapter concludes, "We showed that a combination of 

leadership directives and simple initiatives can alter the relationship a department can 

have with their community" (pg. 213). This speaks to the need for clear buy-in from 

BPD leadership. The Working Group recommends that the BPD adopt the written 

consent form used in North Carolina, a copy of which can be found here. 

9. For any individual detained, BPD officers shall provide a business card with the

following information on the back

a) A website similar to RAHEEM that collects information on police-civilian

encounters. 8 

b) Contact information for filing a complaint with the PRC or its successor, the Police

Accountability Board.

8 https://www.raheem.ai/en/

6 



10. Address Profiling by Proxy9 

Page 19 of 201 

DRAFT 

Police should not be dispatched to calls that are motivated by caller bias or malintent, 

e.g., a claim that someone is suspicious with no corroborating reason.10 These types of

calls harm police-community relationships and undermine the authority of the police. To

protect against profiling by proxy the police department shall:

a. work with PRC and other appropriate agencies to formulate a policy that defines

and remedies profiling by proxy.

b. enhance Dispatcher training to evaluate calls and add implicit bias training for

911 Dispatch.

An article on profiling by proxy by the Vera Institute of Justice recommends including 

911 Dispatch in implicit bias training as a method for reducing issues with profiling by 

proxy. Anti-bias training will also help Dispatchers become aware of their own biases. 

For example, when they receive calls about behavior the complainant may dislike but is 

not illegal-e.g., "too many" black teenagers in the public park.11 

Hiring & Evaluation 

The successful hiring and evaluation of police officers is an important part of creating a healthy 

and high-functioning police department. The types of people the department hires, and the 

effective evaluation of police officers are important in determining police department culture. 

Researchers on policing have repeatedly found that organizational culture is the single most 

important determinant of officer behavior.12 Human Resource Management research supports 

including the evaluation for cultural competency as important in improving agencies. The key 

components for a high degree of cultural competency are: awareness, attitude, knowledge, 

skills. 

11. Fire racist police officers identified through social media and other media screens

A third-party agency, hired by the City of Berkeley, or agency outside the police department

should screen police officers and potential new hires' social media accounts for racist or

violent comments, affiliations to racist groups whether public or private, including private

groups expressing racist or violent rhetoric.

a. BPD shall immediately fire all identified officers who have engaged in racist or

violent actions or commentary online.

b. A social media screen of officer online conduct shall be done annually.

9 Profiling by proxy may occur "when an individual calls the police and makes false or ill-informed claims of
misconduct about persons they dislike or are biased against-e.g., ethnic and religious minorities, youth, homeless 
people" (retrieved from The Vera Institute of Justice). 
1
° Captain Bolton of the Oakland Police Department made improvements on profiling by proxy using an approach that

educated citizens on focusing on criminal behavior instead of suspicion when calling police. 
11 "Avoiding 'profiling by proxy',"Vera Institute of Justice, March 13, 2015, https://www.vera.org/blog/police
perspectives/avoiding-profiling-by-proxy 
12 Organizational Culture and Police Misconduct

7 



Page 20 of 201 

DRAFT 

Recommendations for Council 

Community Engagement and Feedback - When the City of Berkeley pledged to consider 

reducing funding for the police department by 50%, it also committed itself to shifting to new and 

alternative methods of community safety. To effectively understand and implement new and 

alternative safety practices and services, the City of Berkeley must look to its residents for 

ongoing insight and feedback. The City must collect and utilize regular community feedback to 

inform the city on community investment priorities including police department policies and 

practices and future direction. To that end: 

12. Address Profiling by Proxy13 

To protect against profiling by proxy City Council should: 

a. Introduce profiling by proxy legislation similar to CAREN Act in SF, which would

hold residents accountable for using police in a biased manner.

b. Issue a quarterly review of data from 911 Dispatch, for the PRC or City Auditor to

help understand the extent of calls from community members presenting 'biased'

suspicions."

13. Require regular analysis of BPD stop, search, and use of force data

The City Auditor and/or PRC shall update the analysis of BPD data completed by the 

Center for Policing Equity and the PRC and publish the results on the BPD website 

every quarter. This report shall include stop, search, and use of force analysis. -

Ensuring Timely and Effective Implementation: 

Since the fall of 2017, the police department has received 37 separate policy or legislative 

directives to address the racially disparate treatment of City of Berkeley residents. Those 

directives are the result of extensive and on-going racial disparities in police department stops, 

searches, and use of force. As of the drafting of this report, at least 30 of those directives 

remain outstanding with no plan for implementation. 

We respectfully recognize that the role of the Mayor's Working Group on Fair and Impartial 

Policing is to advise the Berkeley City Council and staff. We recognize that we are not in a 

position to make final decisions; rather, our role is to offer advice and recommendations to the 

Council. The Mayor's Working Group is committed to ensuring that the policy recommendations 

outlined in this proposal are not added to the long list of unaccomplished directives. Therefore, 

we have included an accountability system with our policy proposal. This accountability system 

13 When an individual calls the police and makes false or ill-informed claims of misconduct about persons they dislike
or are biased against-e.g., ethnic and religious minorities, youth, homeless people; retrieved from The Vera Institute 
of Justice 

8 



Page 21 of 201 

DRAFT 

will ensure that the changes necessary to establish fair and impartial policing and rebuild public 

trust occur. 

Compliance and Accountability Mechanisms: 

A. Working in partnership with the Mayor's Working Group on Fair and Impartial Policing

and within six months from approval of the proposal (extended for good cause), the City

Manager hires an experienced consultant to help draft an implementation plan that

includes a timeline to monitor, assess, and report on the implementation of the items

outlined in the working group's policy proposal.

i. If a consultant is not hired within six months from approval of the proposal, the

Council should move to item "E" below.

ii. If a consultant is not hired within six months (extended for good cause), the

working group should remain formally organized by the Mayor until a consultant

is hired and a plan is approved.

B. The Working Group, Police Chief, and the consultant will create an implementation plan

that includes a timeline to monitor, assess, and report on the implementation of the items

outlined in the Working Group's policy proposal. Long-term monitoring and assessments

will be the responsibility of the police oversight body (the PRC or its successor the Police

Accountability Board).

C. The implementation plan will be presented to the Berkeley City Council for approval.

Once the plan is approved by the City Council, the consultant's work is finished. Long

term monitoring and assessment will be the responsibility of the police oversight body

(the PRC or its successor the Police Accountability Board).

D. The City Manager and the Berkeley Police Chief should do everything within their power

to implement the items outlined in the plan and timeline set forth and approved by City

Council.

E. The City Council should set the implementation of this plan as a priority in the annual

evaluation of the city manager.

F. If the City Manager does not ensure that the Police Department implements the plan in

accordance with the timeline, the City Manager should be held accountable.

i. In the event of a new Berkeley Police Department Chief: the Mayor's Working

Group, on Fair and Impartial Policing, the new Police Chief and the City Manager

shall meet and agree upon an updated timeline to monitor, assess, and report on

the implementation of the items outlined in the plan approved by City Council.

ii. In the event of a new City Manager: the Working Group, the Berkeley Police

Chief, and the new City Manager shall meet and agree upon an updated timeline

to monitor, assess, and report on the implementation of the items outlined in the

plan approved by City Council.

If these recommendations are adopted and implemented promptly, we expect that the disparate 

stop data can show significant improvement in the near future. We expect the City Manager and 

the Police Chief to implement these programs with enthusiasm and dedication, as they reflect 

the constitutional imperative of equal protection under the law. 

9 



Page 22 of 201 

DRAFT 

10 



Page 23 of 201 

DRAFT 

Appendix A: Additional Recommendations 

The following recommendations are also supported by the working group, which suggests 

referring them to the reimagining process and/or follow-up with the Police Accountability Board 

and the Fair and Impartial working group. See table 1 for recommended actions. 

14. Include a scenario-based training component in the existing officer training required

by California Penal Code 13519.4

a. The training must include specific, relevant examples of prohibited actions and

how to conduct law enforcement activities in an unbiased manner. 14 

b. MILO and VIRTRA are two such scenario-based training programs15 

c. An independent observer shall review the training and report back to the PRC or

its successor on the quality of the training.

15. Require enhanced annual implicit bias training for police

There is scant scientific evidence that implicit bias training works to change implicit 

biases over the long-term. However, agency-wide, enhanced, and well-executed training 

that occurs on a regular basis could have a positive effect on the cultural environment of 

the police department and on expectations for behavior. Regular, required implicit bias 

training provides an expression of institutional support for fairness, which is important in 

improving relationships across groups16and improving agency culture. 

a. Officers should receive intensive anti-racism and implicit bias training as part of

their core instruction in the first 90 days of employment, and an annual 'refresher'

course.

b. An independent observer shall attend the training and report back to the PRC on

the quality of the training.

16. Accelerate Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) activity

a) Require 40 hours of CIT training in the first year of employment.

b) Collect data on CIT calls to allow BPD to make informed decisions about staffing

and deployment so that a CIT officer is available for all shifts in all districts to respond

to every CIT call.

c) Develop a CIT reporting system so that each deployment of a CIT officer is well

documented. CIT officers should submit narrative reports of their interactions with

persons in crisis so the appropriateness of the response can be evaluated in an after

action analysis.

d) Implement an assessment program to evaluate the efficacy of the CIT program as a

whole and the performance of individual CIT officers. A portion of a CIT officer's

performance review should address skill and effectiveness in CIT situations.

14 CA Penal Code 
15 MILO in an Oakland setting
16 Allport, G. W., Clark, K., & Pettigrew, T. (1954). The nature of prejudice.

11 



Page 24 of 201 

DRAFT 

17. The City of Berkeley should conduct annual community forums on Police and Public

Safety:

a. Identifying community-based leaders and impacted individuals for control of the

envisioning process.

b. Placing the process under the Office of the Mayor, not the City Manager. Upon

establishment of the Police Accountability Board, place the process under the

auspices of the Police Accountability Board.

c. Including the creation of community-based measures of safety as part of the first

round of the envisioning process. 17 

d. Once community-based measures of safety are created, including these

measures in the annual community survey (see item 17) and publishing the data

as per item 17b.

18. The City of Berkeley should conduct an annual community survey.

Sample surveys include the Milwaukee survey and the Dallas survey. 

a. Data collected should be shared publicly via the City of Berkeley website or an

online community dashboard.,_ 

19. The City should create a formalized feedback system to gauge community response

to ongoing reforms and ensure this constructive input system is institutionalized and

includes:

a. A basic "Report Card," in collaboration with the PRC or its successor the Police

Accountability Board, based on community feedback for each reform. This will

enable the Department to take the 'community's temperature' on how the

implementation of the reforms are being perceived by the public.

b. Quarterly neighborhood 'check ins' for relationship building .

20. Conduct a Capacity Study

a. Release data including but not limited to 911 dispatch calls, BPD stops and

interventions, written reports, and body-worn camera footage to the City Auditor

and/or PRC for analysis. 18 

b. Conduct an audit on officer down time to determine the percentage of police time

spent outside of responding to calls for service and how police officers spend this

time. Share this information with the City Auditor and/or PRC for analysis for use

in the capacity study.

c. Conduct an audit of police overtime to determine the factors that contribute to the

use of overtime .

17 This process should follow or be modeled after the Everyday Peace Indicators process 
18 This study could be time-limited and would not have to be a comprehensive analysis of internal data; a random 
sample done correctly would suffice to determine how best to restructure the response to a variety of problematic 
situations. 

12 



Page 25 of 201 

DRAFT 

d. Identify what percentage of calls for service require a unique police response and

what percentage of calls could be better served by an alternative response with

the goal to focus police response on issues that can best be responded to by

police officers.

e. These data can also assist in identifying calls suspected of profiling by proxy.

21. Fund and implement a specialized care unit for mental health crises

Fully fund and implement the specialized care unit as swiftly as possible in order to 

remove mental health and homeless encounters from the responsibility of BPD. 

Research has found that individuals with mental illness are at a higher risk of police 

stops, use of force, 19 and a fatal police encounter.20 These disparities increase for Black 

and Latinx individuals. Specialized mental health crisis units are a safer option for those 

experiencing a mental health crisis than a police response and a more cost-effective use 

of public resources.21 The Council's July 14, 2020 decision to create a Specialized Care 

Unit will better serve people in Berkeley experiencing a mental health crisis. The 

Working Group supports transitioning away from police as first responders to 911 calls 

related to mental health and towards trained, unarmed mental health first responders. 

The Berkeley Community Safety Coalition in collaboration with Councilmember Bartlett 

are developing a proposal related to a pilot program transitioning away from sworn 

police as first responders to professional mental health first responders. The Working 

Group supports this effort. 

22. Make resources on police-civilian encounters more publicly available, including:

a. A website similar to RAHEEM that collects information on police-civilian

encounters. 22 

b. Contact information for filing a complaint with the PRC or its successor.

23. Evaluate the impact of these proposals on racial disparities in stops and searches,

using regular updates to stop and search data

19 Mental Illness. Police Use of Force, and Citizen Injury 

20 Deaths of people with mental illness during interactions with law enforcement 
21 CAHOOTS Media Guide. 2020 
22 https://www.raheem.ai/en/ 

13 



 

Attachment 2: Working Group Recommendations Passed by Council. February 

23, 2021 

 

 

 

  

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/02-23-Special-Annotated-Agenda.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/02-23-Special-Annotated-Agenda.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/02-23-Special-Annotated-Agenda.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/02-23-Special-Annotated-Agenda.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/02-23-Special-Annotated-Agenda.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/02-23-Special-Annotated-Agenda.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/02-23-Special-Annotated-Agenda.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/02-23-Special-Annotated-Agenda.pdf


ANNOTATED AGENDA 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL 

Tuesday, February 23, 2021 

4:00 P.M. 

DISTRICT 1 - RASHI KESARWANI 

DISTRICT 2 - TERRY TAPLIN 

DISTRICT 3 - BEN BARTLETT 

DISTRICT 4 - KA TE HARRISON 

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR 

Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 5 - SOPHIE HAHN 

DISTRICT 6 - SUSAN WENGRAF 

DISTRICT 7 - RIGEL ROBINSON 

DISTRICT 8 - LORI DROSTE 

PUBLIC ADVISORY: THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 

VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE 

Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this meeting 
of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference. Please be 
advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety 
of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting 
location available. 

Live audio is available on KPFB Radio 89. 3. Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable 
B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet accessible video stream at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx. 

To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device: Please use this URL 
https://us02web.zoom.us/i/81676274736. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the 
drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the "raise 
hand" icon by rolling over the bottom of the screen. 

To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 or 1-877-853-5257 {Toll Free) and enter Meeting ID: 816 7627 4736. ff you 
wish to comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair. 

To submit an e-mail comment during the meeting to be read aloud during public comment, email 
clerk@cityofberkeley.info with the Subject Line in this format: "PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM##-." Please observe a 
150 word limit. Time limits on public comments will apply. Written comments will be entered into the public record. 

Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules 
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference. 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953. Any member 
of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City 
Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the Agenda. Meetings will 
adjourn at 11 :00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time to be specified. 

Tuesday, February 23, 2021 ANNOTATED AGENDA Page 1 



Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call: 4:06 p.m. 

Present: Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin 

Absent: Kesarwani 

Councilmember Kesarwani present at 4:13 p.m. 

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to adopt a special rule for this meeting to limit public 
comment to one minute per speaker, with the option to yield time up to a total of four 
minutes. 
Vote: Ayes - Taplin, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin; Noes 
- None; Abstain - None; Absent - Kesarwani

Action Calendar - New Business 

1. Report and Recommendations From Mayor's Fair and Impartial Policing
Working Group
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Harrison (Author)
Recommendation:
1. Accept and acknowledge the report from the Fair and Impartial Working Group
(Attachment 1 ).
2. Direct the City Manager to implement the following recommendations summarized
below and detailed in full in Attachment 1, with at minimum, quarterly progress
updates to the Police Accountability Board (PAB) and/or the Working Group.
-Focus traffic stops on safety
-Use a clear, evidence-based definition for stops of criminal suspects
-Use race and ethnicity as determining factors in stops only when paired with clear,
evidence-based criteria
-Eliminate stops for low-level offenses
-Implement an Early Intervention System (EIS) and a risk-management structure
-Immediately release stop, arrest, calls for service and use of force data from 2012 to
present to the Working Group
-Limit warrantless searches of individuals on supervised release status such as Post
Release Community Supervision (PRCS), probation, or parole
-Require written consent for all consent searches
-Address Profiling by Proxy (PAB Policy Development, Dispatcher Training)
-Fire racist police officers identified through social media and other media screens
-Address Profiling by Proxy (Council develop & pass CAREN policy)
-Require regular analysis of BPD stop, search, and use of force data
-Make resources on police-civilian encounters more publicly available such as
RAHEEM.org
-Adopt Compliance and Accountability Mechanisms; -Hire consultant to develop
implementation plan
-For any individual detained, BPD officers shall provide a business card with info on
a website similar to RAHEEM and info on complaint process with PAB
3. Refer the following recommendations summarized below and detailed in full in
Attachment 1 to be included in the process to reimagine public safety:

Tuesday, February 23, 2021 ANNOTATED AGENDA Page 2 



Action Calendar - New Business 

-Create a formalized feedback system to gauge community response to ongoing
reforms and ensure this constructive input system is institutionalized with the Police
Review Commission or its successor and includes a basic report card and quarterly
neighborhood check-ins
-Conduct a baseline community survey
4. Refer the following recommendations summarized below and detailed in full in
Attachment 1 to the Police Review Commission, to be taken up by the Police
Accountability Board when it is established
-Include a scenario-based training component in the existing officer training required
by California Penal Code 13519.4
-Require enhanced annual implicit bias training for police
-Accelerate Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) activity
5. Acknowledge and reaffirm the following recommendations summarized below and
detailed in full in Attachment 1 that are already underway:
-Fund and implement a specialized care unit for mental health crises
-Conduct a Capacity Study of police calls and responses and use of officer time
outside of case work
6. Refer $50,000 to the FY 2022 budget process for a consultant to develop an
implementation plan as described in Attachment 1 and other minor costs the
Department may confer
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100
Action: 40 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Harrison) to:
1. Accept and acknowledge the report from the Mayor's Fair and Impartial Policing

Working Group;
2. Acknowledge and appreciate the work already completed or underway by the City

Manager's Office and Police Department to implement policing reforms including:
• Adoption and implementation of Policy 401, Fair and Impartial Policing
• Public reporting of stop data on the BPD Open Data Portal
• Initiation of the Center for Policing Equity study
• Implementation of the Body Worn Camera Program
• Early adoption of Racial and Identity Profiling Act (RIPA) data collection and

reporting
• Updates to the Use of Force Policy, Policy 300
• Development and passage of Measure II to create a new Police Accountability

Board
• Launching of the Public Safety Reimagining process

3. Refer to the City Manager to implement the following recommendations
summarized below, with quarterly progress updates to the City Council and
Police Review Commission/Police Accountability Board (when established):
Implement a new evidence-based Traffic Enforcement Model
• Focusing the basis for traffic stops on safety and not low-level offenses;
• Reaffirming and clarifying that the Berkeley Police Department will use a

clear, evidence-based definition for stops of criminal suspects;
• Reaffirming and clarifying that the Berkeley Police Department will use race

and ethnicity as determining factors in stops only when paired with clear,
evidence-based criteria

• Minimize or de-emphasize as a lowest priority stops for low-level offenses.

Tuesday, February 23, 2021 ANNOTATED AGENDA Page 3 



Action Calendar - New Business 

Implement Procedural Justice Reforms 
• Refer amendments to existing BPD policy and the creation of an Early

Intervention System (EIS) related to traffic, bike and pedestrian stops;
• Adopt a policy to require written consent for all vehicle and residence

searches and update the consent search form in alignment with best practice
and community feedback;

• Limit warrantless searches of individuals on supervised release status such as
Post Release Community Supervision (PRCS), probation, or parole;

• Address Profiling by Proxy (PAB Policy Development, Dispatcher Training);
• Fire racist police officers identified through social media and other media

screens;
• Require regular analysis of BPD stop, search, and use of force data;
• Make resources on police-civilian encounters publicly available such as

through RAHEEM.org;
• For any individual detained, BPD officers shall provide a business card with

info on the commendation and complaint process with PAB and Berkeley
Police Department.

Request that the City Manager report back at a Council Work Session in three 
months with budget estimates for implementation (to be considered along with 
the FY 22 budget process), information on legal and operational considerations, 
and a short-term action plan of recommendations which can be implemented 
without the hiring of a consultant, and those that will require the assistance of a 
consultant and additional resources. 
Compliance and Accountability Mechanisms 
• The City Manager will create an implementation plan with the assistance of a

consultant that includes a timeline to monitor, assess, and report on the
implementation of the items outlined in the Working Group's policy proposal.
Long-term monitoring and assessments will be the responsibility of the police
oversight body (the PRC or its successor the Police Accountability Board).

• The implementation plan will be presented to the Berkeley City Council for
approval. Once the plan is approved by the City Council, the consultant's work
is finished. Long-term monitoring and assessment will be the responsibility of
the police oversight body (the PRC or its successor the Police Accountability
Board).

4. Refer the following recommendations summarized below to the Reimagine Public
Safety process:
• Create a formalized feedback system to gauge community response to

ongoing reforms and ensure this constructive input system is institutionalized
with the Police Review Commission or its successor and includes a basic
report card and quarterly neighborhood check-ins

• Conduct a baseline community survey.
5. Refer the following training recommendations summarized below to the Police

Review Commission, to be taken up by the Police Accountability Board when it is
established, and consider the resources required to implement this expanded
training:
• Include a scenario-based training component in the existing officer training

required by California Penal Code 13519.4
• Require enhanced annual implicit bias training for police
• Accelerate Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) activity

Tuesday, February 23, 2021 ANNOTATED AGENDA Page4 



Action Calendar - New Business 

• Refer to the PRC/PAB to consider a departmental policy on requiring written
consent for person searches and report back in 6 months.

6. Acknowledge and reaffirm the following recommendations summarized below
and detailed in full in Attachment 1 that are already underway and have been
completed:
• BPD released stop, arrest, calls for service and use of force data from 2012 to

present to the Working Group;
• Fund and implement a specialized care unit for mental health crises;
• Conduct a Capacity Study of police calls and responses and use of officer

time outside of case work.
7. Refer $50,000 to the FY 2022 budget process for a consultant to assist the City

Manager/Police Department in the implementation of these recommendations
and other minor costs the Department may confer; and also refer to the FY 2022
budget process a line item for police training for the new evidence-based stop
program (costs to be determined by BPD).

Vote: All Ayes. 

Adjournment 

Action: M/S/C (Robinson/Taplin) to adjourn the meeting. 
Vote: All Ayes. 

Adjourned at 7:07 p.m. 

Communications 

• None

Supplemental Communications and Reports 1 

• None

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2 

Item #1: Report and Recommendations From Mayor's Fair and Impartial Policing 
Working Group 

1. Elizabeth Ferguson

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3 

Item #1: Report and Recommendations From Mayor's Fair and Impartial Policing 
Working Group 

2. Material, submitted by Mayor Arreguin
3. Presentation, submitted by the Police Department
4. Janice Schroeder
5. Thomas Luce
6. Ben Gerhardstein, on behalf of Walk Bike Berkeley
7. Diana Bohn
8. Sivan Orr
9. Ali Lafferty

Tuesday, February 23, 2021 ANNOTATED AGENDA Page 5 



 

Attachment 3: Summary of BPD Quarterly Updates on Fair and Impartial 

Policing Implementation 

  



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 B
er

ke
le

y 
Po

lic
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
ts

: F
ai

r &
 Im

pa
rt

ia
l P

ol
ic

in
g 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
U

pd
at

es
 p

er
 B

PD
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 3

 

  
 

 
 

FI
P 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

Ju
ne

 2
02

1 
O

ct
 2

02
1 

Fe
b 

20
22

 
Ju

ne
 2

02
2 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

22
 

M
ar

ch
 2

02
3 

Ju
ne

 2
02

3 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
23

 
Im

pl
em

en
t a

 n
ew

 
ev

id
en

ce
-b

as
ed

 
tr

af
fic

 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
m

od
el

: 
m

in
im

ize
 o

r d
e-

em
ph

as
ize

 a
s a

 
lo

w
es

t p
rio

rit
y 

st
op

s f
or

 lo
w

-le
ve

l 
of

fe
ns

es
 

A 
w

or
ki

ng
 g

ro
up

 
(w

g)
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

es
ta

bl
ish

ed
 

co
ns

ist
in

g 
of

 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 in
 e

ve
ry

 
di

vi
sio

n 
of

 B
PD

 
an

d 
a 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
of

 
th

e 
BP

A 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

. T
he

 w
g 

is 
ta

sk
ed

 w
ith

 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 w
ha

t 
lo

w
-le

ve
l o

ffe
ns

es
 

ar
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 

w
hi

le
 b

al
an

ci
ng

 
th

e 
ne

ce
ss

ity
 o

f 
tr

af
fic

 sa
fe

ty
 a

nd
 

th
e 

Be
rk

el
y 

Vi
sio

n 
Ze

ro
 in

iti
at

iv
e.

 T
he

 
w

g 
w

ill
 p

re
se

nt
 

re
co

m
m

en
de

d 
po

lic
y 

la
ng

ua
ge

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s a

na
ly

sis
 o

f 
ris

k 
or

 u
ni

nt
en

de
d 

ou
tc

om
es

 n
o 

la
te

r 
th

an
 F

al
l 2

02
1.

 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

ire
ct

ed
 

to
 fo

cu
s l

es
s 

at
te

nt
io

n 
on

 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

vi
ol

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

ar
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 
to

 m
ak

e 
in

ve
st

ig
at

iv
e 

st
op

s r
el

at
ed

 
to

 c
rim

in
al

 
in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 

Th
e 

w
g 

ha
s 

be
en

 w
or

ki
ng

 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

tr
af

fic
 

of
fe

ns
es

 th
at

 
m

os
t i

m
pa

ct
 

pu
bl

ic
 sa

fe
ty

. 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

da
ta

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
pr

im
ar

y 
co

lli
sio

n 
fa

ct
or

s a
nd

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

ire
ct

ed
 to

 
en

fo
rc

e 
th

os
e 

vi
ol

at
io

ns
. T

he
 w

g 
cr

ea
te

d 
a 

th
re

e-
pr

on
g 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 
th

at
 fo

cu
se

s o
n 

pr
im

ar
y 

co
lli

sio
n 

fa
ct

or
s,

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
m

em
be

r r
ep

or
ts

, 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
ca

re
ta

ki
ng

. 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 h

as
 

co
m

m
en

ce
d.

  

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e1 . 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

da
ta

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
pr

im
ar

y 
co

lli
sio

n 
fa

ct
or

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

di
re

ct
ed

 to
 

en
fo

rc
e 

th
os

e 
vi

ol
at

io
ns

. B
PD

 
ha

s 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
an

d 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ta

l 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
th

re
e-

pr
on

g 
ap

pr
oa

ch
.  

 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
th

re
e-

pr
on

ge
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 h
as

 
co

nc
lu

de
d.

 T
he

 
De

pa
rt

m
en

t w
ill

 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 
re

vi
ew

 d
at

a 
on

 
tr

af
fic

 o
ffe

ns
es

 
th

at
 a

ffe
ct

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
sa

fe
ty

.  

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, t

hi
s 

ha
s b

ee
n 

fo
rm

al
ize

d 
as

 a
 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ta

l 
di

re
ct

iv
e 

in
 a

 
Sp

ec
ia

l O
rd

er
 

on
 tr

af
fic

 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t. 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

U
se

 a
 c

le
ar

, 
ev

id
en

ce
-b

as
ed

 
de

fin
iti

on
 fo

r s
to

ps
 

BP
D 

is 
es

ta
bl

ish
in

g 
a 

pr
ec

isi
on

 b
as

ed
 

po
lic

in
g 

m
od

el
 

th
at

 c
on

sid
er

s 

BP
D 

co
nt

in
ue

s t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

an
d 

de
pl

oy
 d

at
a-

BP
D 

is 
es

ta
bl

ish
in

g 
a 

pr
ec

isi
on

-b
as

ed
 

po
lic

in
g 

m
od

el
 

BP
D 

is 
es

ta
bl

ish
in

g 
a 

pr
ec

isi
on

-b
as

ed
 

po
lic

in
g 

m
od

el
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 B
PD

 
is 

es
ta

bl
ish

in
g 

a 
pr

ec
isi

on
-b

as
ed

 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1  R
ef

le
ct

s B
DP

-r
ep

or
te

d 
st

at
us

 u
pd

at
e.

  



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 B
er

ke
le

y 
Po

lic
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
ts

: F
ai

r &
 Im

pa
rt

ia
l P

ol
ic

in
g 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
U

pd
at

es
 p

er
 B

PD
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 3

 

  
 

 
 of

 c
rim

in
al

 
su

sp
ec

ts
 

da
ta

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 

sa
fe

ty
. D

at
a 

dr
iv

en
 

to
ol

s t
ha

t e
na

bl
e 

cl
os

e 
to

 re
al

-t
im

e 
da

sh
bo

ar
d 

tr
ac

ki
ng

 o
f c

al
ls 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 h

av
e 

be
en

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Bu

re
au

 
an

d 
Pa

tr
ol

 W
at

ch
 

Co
m

m
an

de
er

s.
 

Th
e 

go
al

 is
 to

 h
av

e 
da

ta
-d

riv
en

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 to
 

vi
ol

en
ce

 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

s i
n 

re
al

 
tim

e 
cr

im
e 

an
d 

ca
ll 

an
al

ys
is 

fo
r 

pa
tr

ol
 d

ep
lo

ym
en

t 
st

ra
te

gi
es

.  

dr
iv

en
 to

ol
s 

to
 e

nh
an

ce
 

pr
ec

isi
on

-
ba

se
d 

po
lic

in
g 

m
od

el
. 

In
te

rv
ie

w
in

g 
fo

r t
w

o 
da

ta
 

an
al

ys
ts

 a
nd

 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 to
 

bu
ild

 d
at

a 
da

sh
bo

ar
d.

 

th
at

 c
on

sid
er

s 
da

ta
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 
sa

fe
ty

. D
at

a 
dr

iv
en

 to
ol

s t
ha

t 
en

ab
le

 re
al

-t
im

e 
da

sh
bo

ar
d 

tr
ac

ki
ng

 (c
lo

se
 to

 
re

al
 ti

m
e)

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

to
 

Pa
tr

ol
 W

at
ch

 
Co

m
m

an
de

rs
. 

Ex
pl

or
in

g 
fe

as
ib

ili
ty

 o
f a

 
sy

st
em

 th
at

 
em

pl
oy

s a
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 lo
op

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ba
ck

 
to

 th
e 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 B
ur

ea
u 

to
 su

pp
or

t 
ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
y.

 
Fi

lle
d 

on
e 

of
 tw

o 
da

ta
 a

na
ly

st
 

po
sit

io
ns

. 

th
at

 c
on

sid
er

s 
da

ta
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 
sa

fe
ty

. D
at

a 
dr

iv
en

 to
ol

s 
th

at
 e

na
bl

e 
re

al
-t

im
e 

da
sh

bo
ar

d 
tr

ac
ki

ng
 (c

lo
se

 
to

 re
al

 ti
m

e)
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 
Pa

tr
ol

 W
at

ch
 

Co
m

m
an

de
rs

. 
Ex

pl
or

in
g 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 o

f a
 

sy
st

em
 th

at
 

em
pl

oy
s a

 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 lo

op
. 

po
lic

in
g 

m
od

el
 

th
at

 c
on

sid
er

s 
da

ta
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 
sa

fe
ty

. D
at

a 
dr

iv
en

 to
ol

s 
th

at
 e

na
bl

e 
re

al
-t

im
e 

da
sh

bo
ar

d 
tr

ac
ki

ng
 (c

lo
se

 
to

 re
al

 ti
m

e)
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 
Pa

tr
ol

 W
at

ch
 

Co
m

m
an

de
rs

. 
Du

rin
g 

th
is 

re
po

rt
in

g 
pe

rio
d 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 
lo

op
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 
Sy

st
em

 
pr

ov
id

es
 

tr
ac

ki
ng

 o
f c

al
ls 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 w

ith
 

th
e 

go
al

 o
f c

al
l 

an
al

ys
is 

fo
r 

pa
tr

ol
 

de
pl

oy
m

en
t 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 a

nd
 

al
lo

w
s o

ffi
ce

rs
 

in
 th

e 
fie

ld
 to

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
e 

to
 th

e 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Bu

re
au

.  
 



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 B
er

ke
le

y 
Po

lic
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
ts

: F
ai

r &
 Im

pa
rt

ia
l P

ol
ic

in
g 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
U

pd
at

es
 p

er
 B

PD
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 3

 

  
 

 
 U

se
 ra

ce
 a

nd
 

et
hn

ic
ity

 a
s 

de
te

rm
in

in
g 

fa
ct

or
s i

n 
st

op
s 

on
ly

 w
he

n 
pa

ire
d 

w
ith

 c
le

ar
, 

ev
id

en
ce

-b
as

ed
 

cr
ite

ria
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 E
xi

st
in

g 
la

w
 p

ro
hi

bi
ts

 
ra

ci
al

 p
ro

fil
in

g.
 

Po
lic

y 
40

1 
(F

ai
r 

an
d 

Im
pa

rt
ia

l) 
ex

pl
ic

itl
y 

st
at

es
 

th
at

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 sh
al

l 
no

t c
on

sid
er

 ra
ce

, 
et

hn
ic

ity
, n

at
io

na
l 

or
ig

in
, g

en
de

r…
.in

 
es

ta
bl

ish
in

g 
re

as
on

ab
le

 
su

sp
ic

io
n 

or
 

pr
ob

ab
le

 
ca

us
e…

th
e 

ab
ov

e 
po

lic
ie

s w
er

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 in

 li
gh

t 
of

 ta
sk

fo
rc

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

an
d 

fo
un

d 
to

 
af

fir
m

 a
nd

 c
la

rif
y 

of
fic

er
 

re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 in
 

st
op

s.
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
Sa

m
e 

as
 

pr
ev

io
us

 
Sa

m
e 

as
 

pr
ev

io
us

 
Sa

m
e 

as
 

pr
ev

io
us

 
Sa

m
e 

as
 

pr
ev

io
us

 
Sa

m
e 

as
 

pr
ev

io
us

 

Im
pl

em
en

t a
n 

Ea
rly

 In
te

rv
en

tio
n 

Sy
st

em
 (E

IS
) a

nd
 a

 
ris

k-
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

 
W

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 
to

 E
W

S 
to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
da

ta
 

ar
ou

nd
 tr

af
fic

, 
bi

ke
, a

nd
 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
st

op
s.

  

Am
en

dm
en

ts
 a

re
 

be
in

g 
m

ad
e 

to
 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 

id
en

tif
y 

ad
di

tio
na

l a
ct

iv
ity

 
th

at
 sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 w

he
n 

ap
pl

yi
ng

 th
e 

EW
S 

po
lic

y.
 L

an
gu

ag
e 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

  
U

pd
at

ed
 p

ol
ic

y 
fin

al
ize

d 
re

fle
ct

in
g 

am
en

dm
en

ts
 to

 
in

cl
ud

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 

st
op

 d
at

a 
fo

r 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 
Ra

nd
om

 
qu

ar
te

rly
 a

ud
its

 
of

 o
ffi

ce
rs

’ s
to

p 
da

ta
, 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s,

 a
nd

 
us

e 
of

 fo
rc

e,
 

an
d 

ot
he

r 

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

co
m

pl
et

e.
 T

he
 

Ci
ty

 C
ou

nc
il 

 
re

fe
rr

ed
 

$1
00

,0
00

 to
 th

e 
Ju

ne
 2

02
3 

Bu
dg

et
 P

ro
ce

ss
 

to
 e

nt
er

 in
to

 a
 

co
nt

ra
ct

 to
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 B
er

ke
le

y 
Po

lic
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
ts

: F
ai

r &
 Im

pa
rt

ia
l P

ol
ic

in
g 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
U

pd
at

es
 p

er
 B

PD
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 3

 

  
 

 
 

ad
de

d 
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

da
ta

 a
ro

un
d 

tr
af

fic
, b

ic
yc

le
 

an
d 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
st

op
s.

 T
he

 n
ew

 
po

lic
y 

is 
be

in
g 

re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

po
lic

e 
un

io
n.

 

in
di

vi
du

al
 

of
fic

er
s.

 T
he

 
Au

di
ts

 a
nd

 
In

sp
ec

tio
ns

 
Se

rg
ea

nt
 w

ill
 

al
so

 c
on

du
ct

 
se

pa
ra

te
 a

nd
 

ra
nd

om
 

qu
ar

te
rly

 a
ud

its
 

of
 o

ffi
ce

r’s
 st

op
 

da
ta

, 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s,
 a

nd
 

us
e 

of
 fo

rc
e 

in
ci

de
nt

s a
nd

 
ot

he
r f

ac
to

rs
 

an
d 

w
ill

 sh
ar

e 
th

es
e 

au
di

ts
 

w
ith

 th
e 

PA
B.

 

fa
ct

or
s,

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f w
hi

ch
 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 
to

 th
e 

Ch
ie

f o
f 

Po
lic

e.
 

de
sig

n 
an

d 
as

sis
t w

ith
 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

a 
co

m
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

Ea
rly

 
In

te
rv

en
tio

n 
an

d 
Ri

sk
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Sy
st

em
.  

BP
D 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

re
gu

la
r a

na
ly

sis
 o

f 
st

op
, s

ea
rc

h,
 a

nd
 

us
e 

of
 fo

rc
e 

da
ta

 

 
BP

D 
is 

in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s o
f 

ex
pa

nd
in

g 
th

e 
ca

ll 
fo

r s
er

vi
ce

 
da

ta
se

t t
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

al
l c

al
l 

ty
pe

s a
nd

 
el

im
in

at
e 

18
0-

da
y 

tim
e 

ra
ng

e.
 B

PD
 

ha
s s

ta
rt

ed
 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 
a 

ve
nd

or
 to

 
up

da
te

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 fa

ci
ng

 
op

en
 d

at
a.

  

In
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s o
f 

el
im

in
at

in
g 

th
e 

18
0-

da
y 

tim
e 

ra
ng

e 
th

at
 

cu
rr

en
tly

 e
xi

st
s.

 
In

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s o

f 
ex

pa
nd

in
g 

th
e 

ca
ll 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 

da
ta

 se
t. 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
is 

su
m

m
er

 2
02

2.
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 O
pe

n 
Da

ta
 P

or
ta

l a
nd

 
Tr

an
sp

ar
en

cy
 

Hu
b 

ef
fe

ct
ua

te
 

th
is 

re
co

m
m

en
d-

at
io

n.
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 T
he

 
de

pa
rt

m
en

t w
ill

 
re

gu
la

rly
 

an
al

yz
e 

st
op

, 
se

ar
ch

, a
nd

 u
se

 
of

 fo
rc

e 
da

ta
. 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 B
er

ke
le

y 
Po

lic
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
ts

: F
ai

r &
 Im

pa
rt

ia
l P

ol
ic

in
g 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
U

pd
at

es
 p

er
 B

PD
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 3

 

  
 

 
 Re

qu
ire

 w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t f

or
 a

ll 
co

ns
en

t s
ea

rc
he

s 

 
Po

lic
y 

to
 

re
qu

ire
 

w
rit

te
n 

co
ns

en
t f

or
 a

ll 
ve

hi
cl

e 
an

d 
re

sid
en

ce
 

se
ar

ch
in

g 
us

in
g 

up
da

te
d 

fo
rm

 n
ea

r 
co

m
pl

et
io

n.
  

Re
vi

se
d 

co
ns

en
t 

fo
rm

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
cr

ea
te

d.
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
 N

ew
 

se
ar

ch
 a

nd
 

se
izu

re
 p

ol
ic

y 
be

in
g 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
by

 u
ni

on
. 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 
Sa

m
e 

as
 

pr
ev

io
us

 
Sa

m
e 

as
 

pr
ev

io
us

 
Sa

m
e 

as
 

pr
ev

io
us

 
Sa

m
e 

as
 

pr
ev

io
us

 

Li
m

it 
w

ar
ra

nt
le

ss
 

se
ar

ch
es

 o
f 

in
di

vi
du

al
s o

n 
su

pe
rv

ise
d 

re
le

as
e 

st
at

us
 su

ch
 a

s 
PR

CS
, p

ro
ba

tio
n,

 o
r 

pa
ro

le
, a

bs
en

t 
re

as
on

ab
le

 
su

sp
ic

io
n 

 
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 P
ol

ic
y 

31
1 

up
da

te
d 

to
 

lim
it 

se
ar

ch
es

 o
n 

in
di

vi
du

al
s w

ho
 

ar
e 

on
 su

pe
rv

ise
d 

re
le

as
e,

 a
bs

en
t 

re
as

on
ab

le
 

su
sp

ic
io

n.
 

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

co
m

pl
et

e.
 

Ho
w

ev
er

, I
n 

Ju
ly

 2
02

2,
 C

ity
 

Co
un

ci
l 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 a
 

re
vi

se
d 

Po
lic

y 
31

1 
to

 a
llo

w
 fo

r 
se

ar
ch

es
 o

f 
th

os
e 

on
 

su
pe

rv
ise

d 
re

le
as

e 
fo

r 
vi

ol
en

t c
rim

es
. 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Ad
dr

es
s p

ro
fil

in
g 

by
 p

ro
xy

  
 

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

co
m

pl
et

e.
 

Co
m

m
s C

en
te

r 
O

pe
ra

tio
n 

M
an

ua
l a

m
en

de
d 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
. 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Fi
re

 ra
ci

st
 p

ol
ic

e 
of

fic
er

s i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

so
ci

al
 

m
ed

ia
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 
m

ed
ia

 sc
re

en
s 

 
Th

e 
FI

P 
ta

sk
fo

rc
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

m
et

ho
ds

 fo
r 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 
Ex

ist
in

g 
po

lic
y 

im
pl

em
en

ts
 th

is 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 B
er

ke
le

y 
Po

lic
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
ts

: F
ai

r &
 Im

pa
rt

ia
l P

ol
ic

in
g 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
U

pd
at

es
 p

er
 B

PD
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 3

 

  
 

 
 

di
sc

ov
er

in
g 

iss
ue

s a
nd

 
BP

D 
w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

ta
sk

fo
rc

e 
to

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s,
 

le
ga

lit
y,

 a
nd

 
us

ef
ul

ne
ss

 o
f 

th
es

e 
to

ol
s.

 
M

ak
e 

re
so

ur
ce

s o
n 

po
lic

e-
ci

vi
lia

n 
en

co
un

te
rs

 m
or

e 
pu

bl
ic

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

su
ch

 a
s t

hr
ou

gh
 

RA
HE

EM
.o

rg
 

N
ot

 A
dd

re
ss

ed
 

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

N
A 

 

Fo
r a

ny
 in

di
vi

du
al

 
de

ta
in

ed
 B

PD
 

of
fic

er
s s

ha
ll 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
bu

sin
es

s 
ca

rd
 

 
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 In
 M

ay
 

20
21

 b
us

in
es

s 
ca

rd
s m

od
ifi

ed
 to

 
ad

d 
in

fo
 fo

r I
A 

an
d 

PA
B 

on
 b

ac
k.

 
O

ffi
ce

rs
 d

ire
ct

ed
 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 to

 a
ll 

de
ta

in
ed

. 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Co
nd

uc
t a

 c
ap

ac
ity

 
st

ud
y 

of
 p

ol
ic

e 
ca

lls
 a

nd
 re

sp
on

se
s 

an
d 

us
e 

of
 o

ffi
ce

r 
tim

e 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 
ca

se
 w

or
k 

 
 

Ci
ty

 A
ud

ito
r’s

 
re

po
rt

 in
cl

ud
ed

 
an

al
ys

is 
of

 C
AD

 
da

ta
. B

PD
 h

as
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 
ad

de
d 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
di

sp
os

iti
on

 c
od

es
 

to
 C

AD
 p

ro
gr

am
. 

An
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
of

 o
ve

ra
ll 

st
af

fin
g 

le
ve

ls 
as

 w
el

l a
s p

at
ro

l 
be

at
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
an

al
ys

is 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

fe
rr

ed
 

to
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Th
e 

Ci
ty

 
Au

di
to

r’s
 

re
po

rt
 w

as
 

re
le

as
ed

 
w

hi
ch

 
an

al
yz

ed
 C

AD
 

da
ta

. 
Re

co
m

m
en

d

 T
he

 B
PD

 h
as

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
n 

RF
P.

 C
ity

ga
te

 
ha

s b
ee

n 
se

le
ct

ed
 to

 
co

nd
uc

t t
he

 
w

or
kl

oa
d 

st
ud

y.
 

A 
co

nt
ra

ct
 w

ith
 

A co
nt

ra
ct

 
w

ith
 

Ci
ty

ga
te

 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

by
 

th
e 

en
d 



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 B
er

ke
le

y 
Po

lic
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
ts

: F
ai

r &
 Im

pa
rt

ia
l P

ol
ic

in
g 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
U

pd
at

es
 p

er
 B

PD
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 3

 

  
 

 
 

O
ne

 d
at

a 
an

al
ys

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
ta

sk
ed

 
w

ith
 o

ng
oi

ng
 

an
al

ys
is 

of
 p

ol
ic

e 
ca

lls
 a

nd
 

re
sp

on
se

s.
   

pr
oc

es
s v

ia
 th

e 
Co

un
ci

l’s
 

di
re

ct
io

n 
on

 
Re

im
ag

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 sa

fe
ty

 

at
io

ns
 w

er
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 

th
e 

BP
D 

an
d 

fin
di

ng
s w

er
e 

re
fe

rr
ed

 to
 

th
e 

Re
im

ag
in

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
af

et
y 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
. 

BP
D 

ha
s 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
nd

 a
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

of
 o

ve
ra

ll 
st

af
fin

g 
le

ve
ls 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 p

at
ro

l 
be

at
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
an

al
ys

is 
w

ill
 

be
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 
as

 p
ar

t o
 th

e 
sw

or
n 

st
af

fin
g 

as
se

ss
m

en
t. 

Ci
ty

ga
te

 is
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 in
 th

e 
ne

ar
 fu

tu
re

. 

of
 

Au
gu

st
.  

Fu
nd

 a
nd

 
im

pl
em

en
t a

 
sp

ec
ia

liz
ed

 c
ar

e 
un

it 

XX
 (P

AB
 h

as
 n

ot
 

tr
ac

ke
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
st

at
us

 o
f t

hi
s 

ef
fo

rt
) 

XX
 

XX
 

XX
 

XX
 

XX
 

XX
 

XX
 

Cr
ea

te
 a

 
fo

rm
al

ize
d 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 sy
st

em
 to

 

 
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
 

Ba
se

lin
e 

su
rv

ey
 

In
iti

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 B
PD

 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 

In
iti

al
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 T
o 

Sa
m

e 
as

 
pr

ev
io

us
 



Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 B
er

ke
le

y 
Po

lic
e 

De
pa

rt
m

en
t Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
ts

: F
ai

r &
 Im

pa
rt

ia
l P

ol
ic

in
g 

Re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
U

pd
at

es
 p

er
 B

PD
 

 
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 3

 

  
 

 
 ga

ug
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 

on
go

in
g 

re
fo

rm
s 

an
d 

en
su

re
 th

is 
co

ns
tr

uc
tiv

e 
in

pu
t 

sy
st

em
 is

 
in

st
itu

tio
na

liz
ed

 
w

ith
 th

e 
po

lic
e 

re
vi

ew
 c

om
m

iss
io

n 
or

 it
s s

uc
ce

ss
or

 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 
ba

sic
 re

po
rt

 c
ar

d 
an

d 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

 
ch

ec
k-

in
s;

 c
on

du
ct

 
a 

ba
se

lin
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 su

rv
ey

. 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
Re

im
ag

in
in

g 
Pu

bl
ic

 S
af

et
y 

Ta
sk

fo
rc

e 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

w
ill

 b
e 

se
ek

in
g 

on
go

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

in
pu

t a
nd

 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 v

ia
 

th
e 

Tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

 
Hu

b 

su
pp

or
t 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 
sy

st
em

s,
 th

e 
BP

D 
w

ill
 b

e 
se

ek
in

g 
on

go
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
in

pu
t a

nd
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 
ar

ou
nd

 re
fo

rm
 

ef
fo

rt
s v

ia
 th

e 
Tr

an
sp

ar
en

cy
 

Hu
b.

 

 



 

Attachment 4: BPD Three-Pronged Approach to Traffic Enforcement 

  

https://bpd-transparency-initiative-berkeleypd.hub.arcgis.com/pages/traffic-safety?ref=berkeleyscanner.com
https://bpd-transparency-initiative-berkeleypd.hub.arcgis.com/pages/traffic-safety?ref=berkeleyscanner.com
https://bpd-transparency-initiative-berkeleypd.hub.arcgis.com/pages/traffic-safety?ref=berkeleyscanner.com
https://bpd-transparency-initiative-berkeleypd.hub.arcgis.com/pages/traffic-safety?ref=berkeleyscanner.com


The BPIJ �as mp 11iaritized traffic safety el'fo rts arau d a th rel!'-p rang approach U1at focc11ses o□ primairy coll isi 11n factors (IPCF]. 
1ct1mmunit� 1:aricuns submitted ta the BPIJ. and our rnle a<S com1111uriity caretakers. Gommunity ca retaking funciions consider safety 
viola ·ans that aren't al1 ia�s noted as the primar� colli<Sion factor but 1can be a signific,rnt contributing tactor in serious collisions.
The BPIJ ool lects a range of data re lated to traffic safet

y 
to include cal Is for serM 1ice, collision data. and ,qualitative sunvey data. Ttie

analrse:s ne the II used to guide emoroeme□t, ediucatio□. and pr eve lltian strategies. 

�rang If 1 - Pin1111a['{ Gol lis<ion !Facto rs 

.[Buike ley S>J!e:Dific data} 

t-cll-t111 

e 11 111 i 

•lia:lllllJl111i31I I 

• Stop SI II .,ms 

crom,11 

lo llllrnlt a ra �Ml tl!lll se I out tn roon 01 

Ille 

0 

1 mllstro 

I !Ill 
�L 

 



 

Attachment 5: Berkeley Police Department Memorandum Titled: “PD Response 

to PAB FIP Implementation Report” 

 

 

 



 

Berkeley Police Department 
Memorandum 

 
 

   

 

 

From: Chief Jennifer Louis Date: 4/15/2024 

To: The Police Accountability Board and the Office of the Director of Police Accountability 

Subject: PD Response to PAB FIP Implementation Report 

We sincerely thank you for sharing the draft of your Fair and Impartial Policing Implementation Report 

and for being open to accepting our comments and feedback. The Berkeley Police Department 

commends the Police Accountability Board for your analysis and efforts to enhance policing standards in 

our community. Your work plays a vital role in promoting fairness, equity, and impartiality in policing. 

BPD is fully committed to collaborating with the PAB as we share the goals of ensuring justice and safety 

for every community member. We value your partnership as we implement effective reforms and strive 

for continuous improvement. 

Regarding the specific recommendations: 

• BPD appreciates the guidance to focus on outcomes, not just policies. We commit to including 

measures of our impact on racial disparities, such as steps taken to mitigate officer bias, in our 

quarterly FIP reports. While acknowledging external factors, we will emphasize areas where BPD 

can drive meaningful change. 

• Since implementing our Three-Pronged Traffic Enforcement model, we've decreased equipment 

violation stops by 21% from 2022-2023 and reduced disparities in all discretionary vehicle stops. 

The data shows that the percentage of all discretionary equipment violation stops involving 

Black individuals has decreased from 29.49% in 2021 to 20.93% in 2023, indicating progress in 

addressing the overrepresentation of Black people in these stops. We are open to further 

adjustments but believe our current approach needs more time to demonstrate its full impact. 

• BPD will continue to exceed the Council's directives for implicit bias training through our 

comprehensive KIND program, which embeds these principles into trainings on tactics, de-

escalation, and communication. This holistic approach reinforces recognizing and mitigating bias 

across all aspects of our work. 

• BPD is actively collaborating with the PAB and the Berkeley Police Association to enhance and 

refine our Early Intervention System. We are working to ensure our approach reflects best 

practices and balances the goals of fairness and effectiveness in identifying areas for 

improvement. The system's design will be informed by comprehensive analysis and guidance 

from these subject matter experts. 

• Our policies mandate strict accountability for any biased conduct by officers. BPD is fully 

committed to enforcing these standards to maintain the highest levels of integrity and public 

trust. 

Regarding the collision analysis, we want to clarify that it aims to provide a relevant baseline of the 

demographics of Berkeley drivers, especially those driving dangerously, to enable a fair assessment of 

officers' decision-making. The data reflects operational realities, not an attribution of driving behaviors 



 

Berkeley Police Department 
Memorandum 

 
 

   

 

to any racial group. We acknowledge the omission of equipment violations and commit to expanding 

our analysis to examine these stops in future reports. 

We suggest the FIP subcommittee develop a theory of change linking each recommendation to specific 

factors contributing to disparities (e.g., socioeconomic inequities, institutional practices, individual bias). 

This will allow us to better assess if reforms are addressing the intended aspects of the disparities. 

We also recommend clarifying that the disparity figures compare stop demographics to city 

demographics, not necessarily differential treatment for identical behaviors, to accurately capture the 

complex factors shaping police interactions beyond just department policies. 

Regarding implementation progress, BPD has engaged on every recommendation, completing all but 

one. The outstanding recommendation, 'Conduct a capacity study of police calls and responses and use 

of officer time outside of case work,' is expected to be completed by June, pending the results of an 

upcoming report from Citygate Associates. Our 2023 annual report reflects this progress and 

commitment. Beyond the completion of the final recommendation, the department will continue efforts 

related to fair and impartial policing and will continue to assess and review the efficacy of our efforts.  

In conclusion, the Berkeley Police Department reaffirms our unwavering dedication to fair and impartial 

policing. We deeply value the PAB's crucial role in achieving our shared goals and welcome your 

continued feedback. BPD is committed to learning, improving, and engaging in open dialogue as we 

work together to promote equity and justice. 

Thank you again for the opportunity to provide input. We look forward to our continued partnership to 

ensure Berkeley's policing lives up to our city's values. 

 



   

 

Legislative Updates Relevant to the PAB’s Work 
 



Public 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date: May 17, 2024 

To: Honorable Members of the Police Accountability Board 

From: Hansel Aguilar, Director of Police Accountability 

Keegan Horton, ODPA Investigator  

Jose Murillo, ODPA Policy Analyst 

Subject: Legislative Updates  

 

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide a legislative update to the PAB, 

enabling them to stay informed about changes in local, state, and federal law. 

State Legislative Updates1 

The ODPA has identified the following state legislation as relevant to the work of the PAB: 

• AB-1839 “Peace Officers: education and hiring grants.” Would establish the 

Law Enforcement Officer Grant Program under the administration of the Student 

Aid Commission to provide grants of up to $6,000 per year to individuals enrolled 

in a modern policing degree program at a California community college who 

commit to work for 4 years as a peace officer at a law enforcement agency.  

Status: In committee: Held under submission. 

• AB-2020 “Survivors of Human Trafficking Support Act.” This bill would require 

a county that has an interagency sexual assault response team to establish a 

survivor review board. 

Status: Read second time and amended. Ordered returned to second reading.  

                                                           
1 https://post.ca.gov/Status-of-Current-Legislation  

https://post.ca.gov/Status-of-Current-Legislation
https://post.ca.gov/Status-of-Current-Legislation


Public 

• AB-2042 “Police canines: standards and training.” Would require the 

Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training to develop standards and 

training guidelines for the use of canines by law enforcement.  

Status: Read second time and amended. Ordered returned to second reading.  

• AB-2621 “Law Enforcement Training.”  This bill would require instruction to 

include identifying when a gun violence restraining order is appropriate to prevent 

a hate crime and the procedure for seeking a gun violence restraining order.  

Status: Referred to Com. On PUB S. 

• AB-3021 “Criminal Procedure: interrogations.” This bill would require a peace 

officer, prosecuting attorney, or investigator for the prosecution, prior to 

interviewing a family member of a person who has been killed or seriously injured 

by a peace officer, to clearly identify themselves, if the interview takes place in 

person, to show identification, and to state specified information.  

Status: Read third time and amended. Ordered to third reading.  

• AB-3241 “Law Enforcement: police canines.” Would require the Commission 

on Peace Officer Standards and Training to adopt uniform, minimum guidelines 

regarding the use of canines by law enforcement. 

Status: Read second time and amended. Ordered returned to second reading.  

 

Lexipol Policy Update 

The following updates have been made to the BPD's Lexipol KMS system: 

• 327 “Mutual Aid and Outside Agency Assistance”: Renamed.  

 

City of Berkeley Council Meeting Update 

The following items being considered by the City Council are relevant to the PAB: 

May 14 Special Meeting2 

• Presentation of PAB-ODPA Triennial Report 

 

                                                           
2 https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-14 Special Annotated Agenda - 
Council.pdf 

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-14%20Special%20Annotated%20Agenda%20-%20Council.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-14%20Special%20Annotated%20Agenda%20-%20Council.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-14%20Special%20Annotated%20Agenda%20-%20Council.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-14%20Special%20Annotated%20Agenda%20-%20Council.pdf


Public 

May 21, 2024 Regular Meeting Items:3 

• Consent Item 12. Contract No. 32300103 Amendment: Bay Area PL Services 

of On-call Phlebotomy and Sexual Assault Exams 

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend 

Contract No. 32300103 and any necessary future amendments with Bay Area PL 

Services for the Berkeley Police Department, increasing the contract amount by 

$150,000 for a total not to exceed the amount of $200,000 with the contract end 

date extended to December 31, 2028. 

• Consent Item 14. Develop a pilot program for 5-10 Seriously Mentally Ill (SMI) 

persons who have required frequent interventions 

Recommendation: Direct the City Manager to develop a pilot program for 5-10 

Seriously Mentally Ill (SMI) persons who have required frequent interventions; aim 

is to improve their well-being and prevent or dramatically reduce calls for service; 

the pilot would implement a “friendship or care team” for each as described below 

to build trust, support, address loneliness; teams would be staffed with existing 

contracted outreach providers; teams would keep a brief daily log of their 

experience and calls for service would be tracked; pilot to be evaluated and report 

back to Council quarterly to determine efficacy. Financial  

• Consent Item 15. Amendment to Commissioner Leave of Absence Process 

Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance amending Berkeley 

Municipal Code Section 3.02 to allow the Mayor to approve a Leave of Absence 

for a Commissioner appointed by the Council as a whole. 

• Action Item 21. Fiscal Years 2025 and 2026 Proposed Budget and Proposed 

Budget Public Hearing #1 

Recommendation: Accept the Fiscal Years 2025 and 2026 Proposed Biennial 

Budget for review and consideration by the City Council and final adoption on 

June25, 2024 and conduct Public Hearing #1 on the Fiscal Years 2025 and 

2026Proposed Budget.  

• Informational Report:  

                                                           
3 https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-
21%20Revised%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council%20%28WEB%29.pdf 

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-21%20Revised%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council%20%28WEB%29.pdf#page=111
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-21%20Revised%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council%20%28WEB%29.pdf#page=111
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-21%20Revised%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council%20%28WEB%29.pdf#page=111
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-21%20Revised%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Council%20%28WEB%29.pdf#page=111


Public 

1. Audit Recommendation Status-Berkeley Police: Improvements Needed to 

Manage Overtime and Security Work for Outside Entities  

 

May 21, 2024 Special Meeting Closed Session Items4  

• Closed Session Items are public employee appointments for the Interim City 

Manager and City Manager titles. 

 

May 21, 2024 Agenda & Rules Committee Meeting Agenda Packet5 

• Draft Agenda for June 4, 2024 includes the following items: 

o Consent Item 30. 2023 Police Equipment & Community Safety Ordinance 

Annual Report 

o Consent Item 32. Authorize Purchase Order with National Auto Fleet Group 

for Twenty Ford Police Interceptor Utility (K8A) AWD Vehicles 

o Consent Item 33. Contract: Edgeworth Integration, LLC for Installation of 

Security Cameras at Council-Approved Intersections; and Authorizing 

Additional External Fixed Video Surveillance Cameras 

o Action Item 44. Amendments to Berkeley’s Municipal Code Chapter 2.24 to 

Establish Whistleblower Program Authority 

 

May 22, 2024 Budget & Finance Committee Meeting6 

• Item 2. FY25/26 Proposed Budget 

Recommendation: Discussion and Recommendations on the FY25/26 Proposed 

Budget including funding requests, Council budget referrals and budget balancing 

strategies 

 

                                                           
4 https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-21 Special Closed Agenda - Council.pdf 
5 berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-agendas/2024-05-21 Agenda Packet - Agenda 
Committee.pdf 
6 berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-agendas/2024-05-22 Agenda Packet - BUDGET.pdf 

https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-21%20Special%20Closed%20Agenda%20-%20Council.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/city-council-meetings/2024-05-21%20Special%20Closed%20Agenda%20-%20Council.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-agendas/2024-05-21%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Agenda%20Committee.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-agendas/2024-05-21%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Agenda%20Committee.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-agendas/2024-05-21%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Agenda%20Committee.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-agendas/2024-05-21%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20Agenda%20Committee.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-agendas/2024-05-22%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20BUDGET.pdf
https://berkeleyca.gov/sites/default/files/legislative-body-meeting-agendas/2024-05-22%20Agenda%20Packet%20-%20BUDGET.pdf


   

Communications from the Public 



1

Murillo, Jose

From: Wendy Alfsen <wendyalfsen@gmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, May 5, 2024 10:35 PM
To: Frances Wilson; Office of the Director of Public Accountability
Cc: Shannon Behrman; Summer Brenner; Susan Church; Marilyn Cleveland; Cheryl Cohen-Greene; 

Stephanie Coram; Herb Diamant; Grace Erny; Dennis Fantin; Emily Fox; Suzanne Fraser; Eric 
Gellerman; Miko Gellerman; Cathy Goldsmith; Deborah Green; Julie Guilfoy; Nancy Holland; zoe 
Kalkanis; Lillian Kang; Chris Knudsen; Jill Korte; Janet Levenson; Nancy Litton; Liz; Mischa Lorraine; 
Josh Maddox; Matt Madison; Matt & Ray; Robin McDonnell; Paul Mileck; Jennifer Nutt; Mikey P; Pat; 
Kathi Pugh; Rich; Nick Romeo; Jack Scanlin; Lorraine Scanlin; Lauren Schiller; Pam Springer; Tara 
Sreekrishnan; Andrew O'Shea & Tracy Baille; Gary Turchin; Wanglaw; Michael Weber; Frances Wilson

Subject: Re: Follow up from Elana

WARNING: This is not a City of Berkeley email. Do not click links or attachments unless you trust the sender and know the content is 
safe.  

Chair and Members, Police Accountability Board:  
 

Elana Auerbach contacted the PAB as a result of District 4 Candidate Election questions from MAAGNA 
(McKinley Addison Allston Grant Neighborhood Association) about the BPD interface with us, its 
neighbors, and a City Mitigation Agreement for the zoning permit for construction of the Police 
Administration Building (PAB). ‐‐ 
PAB as an acronym  has resulted in some confusion, and it's not clear about Board jurisdiction, but we do 
appreciate the opportunity to raise the visibility of our need for BPD (and the City government as a 
whole) to be good neighbors  and to abide by their  agreement to exit on MLK or not use sirens, 
especially at night, through the neigbhorhood, until the cars reach University and to regularly maintain 
the non-grass vegetation around the Police Department buildling and its parking lots.  
 

Thank you for the opportunity to  raise this concern with the Berkeley Police Department and to request 
a Department member be identified as responsible to address these types of concerns. We will be happy 
to directly work with the appropriate  BPD staff on these day-to-day issues.  
 

Wendy Alfsen, 1800 Allston Way, Berkeley, CA 94703 510-684-5705 wendyalfsen@gmail.com  
 
 
 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ Forwarded message ‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Frances Wilson <franniew@gmail.com> 
Date: Fri, May 3, 2024 at 2:13 PM 
Subject: Follow up from Elana 
To: Wendy Alfsen <wendyalfsen@gmail.com>, Shannon Behrman <shannon.behrman@gmail.com>, Summer Brenner 
<summerbrenner@gmail.com>, Susan Church <schurch545@me.com>, Marilyn Cleveland 
<marilynjcleveland@gmail.com>, Cheryl Cohen‐Greene <drcherylcg@comcast.net>, Stephanie Coram 
<sacmsw@yahoo.com>, Herb Diamant <hbdigm58@gmail.com>, Grace Erny <gkerny@gmail.com>, Dennis Fantin 
<dennismfantin@gmail.com>, Emily Fox <Efoxfoolery@gmail.com>, Suzanne Fraser <smfezpz@gmail.com>, Eric 
Gellerman <ericgellerman@gmail.com>, Miko Gellerman <mikogellerman@gmail.com>, Cathy Goldsmith 
<cathygoldsmith@gmail.com>, Deborah Green <paintpeace@yahoo.com>, Julie Guilfoy <julieguilfoy@yahoo.com>, 



2

Nancy Holland <gielowd@yahoo.com>, zoe Kalkanis <zkalkanis@gmail.com>, Lillian Kang <mrsmochi@gmail.com>, Chris 
Knudsen <chrisgknudsen@gmail.com>, Jill Korte <heuseljk@sbcglobal.net>, Janet Levenson 
<janet.levenson@gmail.com>, Nancy Litton <nancy@starrlit.net>, Liz <ealinden@gmail.com>, Mischa Lorraine 
<mlorrain@ix.netcom.com>, Josh Maddox <madkat@mac.com>, Matt Madison <comm‐msgs@sbcglobal.net>, Matt & 
Ray <partnrs@sbcglobal.net>, Robin McDonnell <robinmcd@me.com>, Paul Mileck <pauli@lmi.net>, Jennifer Nutt 
<Jennifer.m.nutt@gmail.com>, Mikey P <findmikeyp@gmail.com>, Pat <plremolif@comcast.net>, Kathi Pugh 
<kathipugh@gmail.com>, Rich <richandolgica@olgica.com>, Nick Romeo <romeonick@gmail.com>, Jack Scanlin 
<jackscanlin@comcast.net>, Lorraine Scanlin <scanlinlt@comcast.net>, Lauren Schiller <laurenanita@gmail.com>, Pam 
Springer <giaspring98@yahoo.com>, Tara Sreekrishnan <TSreekrishnan@cityofberkeley.info>, Andrew O'Shea & Tracy 
Baille <apaoshea@gmail.com>, Gary Turchin <garyturchin@gmail.com>, Wanglaw <wanglaw@mindspring.com>, 
Michael Weber <michaeljohnweber1@gmail.com>, Frances Wilson <franniew@icloud.com> 
 

Elana has followed up about the City Mitigation re the police building. She has figured out what MAAGNA  stand for so 
no need to get back to her on that.   
 
Hope somebody can attend the PAB meeting and explain the Mitigation to them. I work Wednesday evenings. 
 
Thanks, 
Frances 
 
 
 

Begin forwarded message: 
 
From: Elana Auerbach <info@elana4berkeley.com> 
Subject: Re: Some Questions from constituents of District 4 
Date: May 3, 2024 at 11:30:01 AM PDT 
To: Frances Wilson <franniew@gmail.com> 
 

Good morning~  
I reached out to Chip Moore, the Chair of the Police Accountability Board (PAB). He 
has no knowledge of the City Mitigation Agreement with MAAGNA.. (What does 
MAAGNA stand for?) 
 

He has added this issue to the next PAB meeting agenda. That meeting will take 
place next Wednesday, May 8 at 6:30pm at the North Berkeley Senior Center in 
case you and some neighbors would like to attend. I will only be able to attend that 
meeting for a bit. 
 

To find out all of the details about PAB meetings, here is the link: 
https://berkeleyca.gov/your‐government/boards‐commissions/police‐accountability‐board 
 

Together we'll make sure the BPD is accountable to their agreements with the 
community. 
 

Sending blessings to your day~~~~~~ 
Elana 
 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Let's create a better Berkeley TOGETHER!  



3

 

Vote for Elana Auerbach on May 28 
elana4berkeley.com 
510.545.3436 
 

Do you live in District 4? Find out here. 
 
 
On Fri, May 3, 2024 at 8:43 AM Frances Wilson <franniew@gmail.com> wrote: 
Hi Elana,  
 
Thank you so much. I will pass it on to the group. 
 
Best wishes, 
Frances 
 
 
 

On May 2, 2024, at 10:56 PM, Elana Auerbach <info@elana4berkeley.com> wrote: 
 

Good Evening Frances~ 
Please find attached the answers to your questions.  
 

Let me know if you have any further questions. 
Warmly~ 
Elana 
 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Let's create a better Berkeley TOGETHER!  
 

Vote for Elana Auerbach on May 28 
elana4berkeley.com 
510.545.3436 
 

Do you live in District 4? Find out here. 
 
 
On Tue, Apr 30, 2024 at 7:01 PM Frances Wilson <franniew@gmail.com> wrote: 
Dear Elana,  
 
As neighbors in McKinley, Addison, Grant, McGee and Spaulding area, we have 
some questions for all the candidates focusing on our unique issues. These 
questions have not been covered in the forums so far.  
 
 
We thought it might be more effective to send you the questions to all the 
candidates. We know your time is precious and that meetings with smaller 
groups of people are not always possible and can tend to get off point. 
 
 
We appreciate you taking the time to answer our concerns listed below. We 
look forward to hearing your responses. 



4

 
 
With thanks, 
 
 
The Residents of McKinley, Addison, Grant, McGee and Spaulding streets in 
District 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
<Questions for Candidates .pdf> 

 

 
 
 
 
‐‐  
Wendy  
510‐684‐5705 
wendyalfsen@gmail.com 
 


	ADP572B.tmp
	Communications from the Public




